
82-ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

1 GRANITE PLACE SOUTH

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301

JOHN M. FORMELLA JAMES T. BOFFETTI

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

January 2, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to retroactively amend an existing subgrant
with 603 Legal Aid, Concord, NH (Vendor # 216800-B001), approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on February 21, 2024, Item #164, by extending the end date only from
December 31, 2024 to June 30, 2025, with no change to the price limitation of $40,000, for the
purpose of continuing to provide services for women in New Hampshire who are victims of
violent crimes, effective upon approval of the Governor and Executive Council. 100% Federal
Funds.

EXPLANATION

This item is retroactive because there were delays in receiving accompanying documents
to the amendment in order to meet a Governor and Executive Council meeting prior to December
31,2024.

On February 21, 2024, the Governor and Executive Council approved a VAWA subgrant
from the Department of Justice to 603 Legal Aid, in an amount not to exceed $40,000 through
December 31, 2024. The Department of Justice requests authorization to extend the end date
only of this existing subgrant, from December 31, 2024, to June 30, 2025. This will allow 603
Legal Aid, to continue providing services to deter crime and aid women who are victims of
crime.

This item is being extended due to delays in the establishment of a new Accounting Unit
for Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) funding. New special conditions within the FY2023
VAWA award required a separation of funding from previous years. The delay in establishing
the new Accounting Unit resulted in the grant agreement not being awarded until February 21,
2024.

Telephone 603.271-3658 • FAX 603-271-2110 • TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

January 2, 2025
Page 2 of 2

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general ftinds will not be requested
to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

Jolm M. Formella

Attorney General

#4797035



AMENDMENT TO GRANT AGREEMENT

This AMENDMENT TO GRANT AGREEMENT (the "Amendment") is entered into and
effective as of the Effective Date (defined below) by and between as of the NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ("State") and the 603 LEGAL AID ("Subrecinient"). State and
Subrecipient are sometimes referred to herein singularly as a "Paitv" and collectively as the
"Parties."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Grant Agreement as approved by the Governor
and Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire on February 21, 2024 at Item # 164 (the
"Agreement"), wherein the State agreed grant, and Subrecipient agreed to accept, certain sums
upon the terms and conditions set forth therein; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Paragraph 20 of the Agreement, the Parties wish to amend
the terms and conditions of the Agreement as further specified herein;

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration exchanged, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby conclusively acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree to amend the
Agreement as follows:

1. Amendment to Block 1.7. The Grant Completion Date of 12/31/2024 set forth in
Block 1.7 of the Agreement is increased to 06/30/2025.

2. Effect of Amendment. Except as provided in this Amendment, the terms and
conditions of the Agreement shall remain in ̂ 11 force and effect for all purposes.

3. Construction. The recitals set forth at the outset of this Amendment are a part of
this Amendment, as fiilly as if set forth in their entirety in the body hereof. The captions or
headings in this Amendment are for ease of reference only, and no caption or heading shall affect
in any way the interpretation, meaning, or construction of this Amendment. Capitalized terms that
are not defined within the text of this Amendment shall have the same meanings respectively
ascribed to them in the Agreement.

4. Effective Date. The terms and conditions of this Amendment shall become

effective on the date that it is approved the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New
Hampshire (the "Effective Date'^.

5. Counterparty; Fgcgimile and Electronic Signatures. This Amendment may be
executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same Amendment. A facsimile or portable document format
(PDF) signature on this Amendment shall be equivalent to, and have the same force and effect as,
an original signature. In accordance with the New Hampshire Uniform Electronic Transactions
Act, RSA 294-E:l et seg., the Parties hereby agree that this Amendment may be signed
electronically, including any exhibits, schedules, addenda, or other attachments referenced herein.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment as of the date
adjacent to their respective signatures set forth below.

603 LEGAL AID

Aripl ripmmor Digitally signed by Ariel Clemmerr\l ICI V-ieiinilCI /'Date: 2024.11.05 17:41:18-OS'OO'

By:
Ariel Clemmer, Executive Director Date

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

By:.  11/25/24

r, Deputy DirectThomas Kaempfer, Deputy Director of Administration Date

Approved by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

12/3/24

^  Date



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that 603 LEGAL AID is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November Oi, 1995. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 239384

Certificate Number: 0006671610

%

u.
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%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



Certificate of Authority

I, Melinda S. Gehris, hereby certify that I am duly elected Chair of 603 Legal Aid. I

hereby certify that the following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the
Board of Directors duly called and held on November 16, 2023, at which a quorum of
Directors participated.

Voted: that Ariel Clemmer, Executive Director, effective November 20,2023, shall be

duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of 603 Legal Aid with the
State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is and has

been authorized to execute any documents which may in her judgment be desirable or

necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and this authority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority.

I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this
certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position

indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that

there are any limits on the authority of the named individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated

herein.

Date:
1

Attest
. ' Melinda S. Gehris, Board Chair

93 North State Street. Suite 200. Concord. NH 03301
Phone: 603-224-3333 \ Fax: 603-224-6067



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

01/12/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE

POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S).
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poIicy(le8) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(8).

PRODUCER

USI INSURANCE SERVICES LLC/PHS

04041093

The Hartford Business Service Center

3600 Wiseman Blvd

San Antonio, TX 78251

CONTACT

NAME:

PHONE (866) 467-8730 fax
(A/C. No. Ext): (AJC.No):

E-MAIL

ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJCi

INSURED

603 Legal Aid

93 N STATE ST STE 200

CONCORD NH 03301-4334

INSURER A Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424

INSURER B Twin City Fire Insurance Company 29459

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE

TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJK
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

MSB.

SUBR

WVD
POLICY NUMBER

POUCY EFF

(MM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP

<MM/DOnfYYY>
LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADe| X [oCCUR
General Liability

DAMAGE TO RENTED

PREMISES lEa occurrefieal

MED EXP {Any one person)

04 SBA EQ5895 02/21/2024 02/21/2025 PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

PRO-

JECT

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$2,000,000

$500,000

$10,000

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$4,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

i£a.a«a8iiU
$2,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

M.L OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED

AUTOS

SCHEDULED

AUTOS

NONOWNED

AUTOS

04 SBA EQ5895 02/21/2024 02/21/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE

(Per accident)

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-

MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION $

^tFT

£a_

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY

ANY YIN

PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

0FFCERA4EMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory in NH)

If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

c

PER

STATUTE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000
HIA 04 WEC NJ8891 02/21/2024 02/21/2025

E.L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMfT $1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES {ACOKD101, Additional Ramailu Schedule, may be attached ff more space is required)

Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Certificate holder is an additional insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this

policy-

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
NH Department of Justice

1 GRANITE PLACE. SOUTH

CONCORD NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED

BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

<E) 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

1 ORANrra) PLACE SOUTH

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03S01

w<

JOHN M. PORMELLA

ATTOnNKY'dENKllAL

JAMES T. BOFFETn

DBPlTTf ATTOKKEY GENERAL

January 26, 2024

His Exceliaicy, Cjovcmbr Christopher t. Simunu
and the Honoratile Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your. Excellency and Members of the Council;

REOUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice to enter into subgrants with the subrecipients listed
below, in an amount not to exceed $412,218.11, from the U.S. Department of Ju^ce, Office of
Violence Against Women, Federal Fiscal 2023 Violence Against Women Formula Grant
(VAWA) for the purpose of providing services for women in New Hampshire w^ are victims of
violent crimes effective upon Goverhor and Executive Coimcil approval through December 31,
2024. 100% Federal Funds.

.Funding is'avail^le in account number 02-20-20-201510-55870000, Department of
Justice, Grants Administration. VAWA23. Grants, Federal as follows:

Class/

Account Sobredpient Vendor#

FY 20204

Amount

085-588510 The NH Judicial Branch (AOC) 311205-8001 $58,531.00

072-500574 Franklin Police Department 177390-8003 $18,825.61

072-500574 Manchesta' Police Department 177433-8012 $93,000.00

072-500574 Office of the' City Solicitor, Manchester, NH" 177433-8012 $30,000.00

072-500574 Mcrriinack County Attorney's Office ^ 177435-8011 $10,000.00

072-500574 Nashua Police Department 177441-8013 $58,000.00

072-500574 Office of the Coos County Attorney 177270-8006 $13,861.50

072-500574 !Str^ofd Couiity Attorh^'s Office 177478-8010 $5,000.00

072-500575 :603.LcgalAid 216800-8001 $40,000.00

072-500575 Bridges Domestic & Sexual Violence Support Services Inc. 155039-8001 $20,000.00

072-500575 New Hanq)shire L^l Assistance 154648-BOOl $45,000.00

072-500575 YWCA New Hampshire 154141-8001 $20,000.00

Total: $412JI8.n

Telejpbone 603-271-5066 • PAX 6b3-971-S110 • TDD Acc«m: Relay NH 1-SOO-TaS-SOM



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

January 26,2024
Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

These subgrants are from ttie Federal Fiscal Year 2023 ftinds that New Hampshire
receives annually from the U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Violence Against Women,
Molence Against'Women Act Grant (VAWA). The grant is targeted specifically at deterring
crimes involving violence against women and aiding women who are victims of crime. Statutory
requirements of the VAWA grant program are that agencies representing law enforcement will be
allocated at least .25% of the award; prosecution offices will be allocated at least 25% of the
award; and victim service providers will be allocated at lea^ 30% of the award (with at least
10% of that to be distributed to culturally specific community-based services and 20% to sexual
assault victims). Lastly, 5% of the funding must be allocated to the courts.

The subrecipients above have received previous VAWA awards from DOJ. All were
selected previously through a Request for Proposal solicitation and now represent core services
of a list of providers for the State of New Hampshire in the area of violence against women
services. These awards will allow the funded organizations to continue providing the vital
services upon which* New Hampshire's citizens have come to rely.

Services and positions being supported through the awarding of these funds include, but
are not limited to, specially trained domestic violience and sexual assault prosecutors at county
attorney offices, victim advocate positions in police departments and in county attorney offices,
staff positions for Domestic Violence Units in our largest police departments, culturally specific
advocacy, and continued services to victims of domestic and sexual violence.

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

Jonn M. Fprmella

Attorney General

#4357949



FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. state Agency Name

New Hampshire.Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address
V  PL

DOyOapitel Otrect, Concord. NH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name

603 Legal Aid

1.4. Grantee Address

93 N. State Street. Suite 200
Concord. NH 03301

1.5 Grantee Phone # 1.6. Account Number

^ (603) 224-3333 x603 owwo-zoisio-ssitooomtj
1.7. Completion Date 1.8. Grant Limitation

12/31/2024 $ 40,000

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-1234

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: 'By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public
meetinc reauirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:9S-b."

1.11. Grantee Slgnaiture 1

Scuddtr

1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1

Steven B. Scudder, interim Executive Director

Grantee Signature 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

1.13 State Agenc3^ighatiire(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)
Kathleen Carr. Director of Administration

. 1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

gy. Assistant Attorney General, On: 1 /17/2024

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: / /

through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee'7, shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

Initials: S05

Page 1 of 35 Date:



4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

12.

8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED.-Except ts otherwite tpecincally provided for herein, the
Cmniec shall perform the Piojca in. and with respect to, the Stale of New
Hampshiie. 9.3.
FFFFmVP DATE- mMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Atreemem. and all oblifatiotts of the parties hereundcr.'shall become
efTcctive on the date on the date of tpptovil of this Ayeement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire ifrtquired (block 1.16), or upon 9.3.
signature by the Slate Agency as shown in block 1.14 CThe ElTecUve Date").
Except u otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
requited by this Agieetrreni. shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
bl^ 1.7 (hereinafter refcired to ss-'theCompictkm Date"),
GRANT AMOUNTt LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and mote porticuiarly described in EXHtBIT C,
attached hereto. ..
The manner of. and schedule ofpayment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with'tbe pibvisions set forth in.EXHIBIT C. and in consideration 10.
of the satisfhctory perfdnnance ofihe Prejecc as deictmtned by the Siae, and as
limited by subpwagraidt 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The Slate shall withhold from the amount otherwise
payable to the Grantee under this subparayaph 5.3 those sums icquirad, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7<.
Th« poyfrmi by ihe State ofthe arwit'tmouru shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whitev« nature, incurr^ by the
Grantee in the peribnnance'hei«of. and shall be the only, and ihe complete,
compensation to (he Grantee fbrihe ProjccL The State shall have no liabilities to 11,
the Grantee otha than (he Gram AmounL 11.1.
Notwithstanding inythtng in this Agrcemcni to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event stall the toul of all paymenu authorized, 11.1.1
or aclustly made, hereundcr exceed the Grant limiutton set forth in block 1.8 of 11.1.2
these general pidvisions. 11.1.3
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH L>WS AND REGUl^TIQNS. In 11.1.4

connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee stall comply with' ill 11.2.
Statutes, bws rcgubtions, and orders of federal. staK. county, or.thunictpal
authorities whi^ stall impose anyobliptkmsordtny upon the Grantee, including II.2.1
the acquisition ofany anil all necessary permits and RSA 31 •95>b.
RECORDS end ACCOUNTS..

Between the Efrecu've Date at^ the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unleu otherwise itquircd by ihe grant terms or the Agettcy. the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the 11.2.2
Project, including, bu not limited to. costs of adminisuation. iransportaiion,
inntrancc. telephone,calls, and clerical materials Bid services. Such accouits
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the EfTcctive Date and Ihe dale seven (7) years after (he Completion
Date, unless otherwise tettuired by the grant terms or (he Agency pursuant to 11.2.3
subpaiagraph 7.1, at any lime during the Grantee's normal business houn, and as
oflra u (he Stale stall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all 11.2.4
records pertaining to. matlcrs covered by this Agtectnenl. The Grantee stall
permit the Slate to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.
of all contraels. tnvbices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that 12.1.
lenh is hereinafter defmed), and other nforraaiion relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "GTantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, alTiliated with, controlled.by. or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 ofthese provisions
PERSQNNa..
The Grantee shall, at its own bpense, provide all personnel necessary to perform 12.2.
(he Project The Grantee warrants that all'personnel engaged in the Project stall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
10 ikribrm such Project imderall applicable laws.
The Grantee shall riot him, and it ̂ 11 not permit any iiteoniractor. subgrantce. 12.3.
or other person, firm or corporation'with'whom it is engitged in a combined effort
10 perform the Project, to hbr any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or %vho is a Sute officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the represcntaiivc of (be Stale hcitunder. In the event
of any dispute hervundo'.'ibe interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant 12.4.
Oflicer, and hisfoer decision on any dispute, stall be final.
PATA: RCTENTION Of PATA; ACCESS-
As used in (his Agreement, the word "data" stall mean til informatioo and thinp 13.
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, (his Agreerrient;including, buinoriiihtted to, all itudiei reports, liles,
fonmiiec, surveys, maps, charts, sound itcordlngs, video cecordinp. pictorial
reproductions, dtawinp, analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memorahda, paper, and
documents, all wdiethcr finished or unfinished.
Between the EfTcctive Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grani to
the State, or any person designated by it. unrestricted access to all data for
examination; du^ication. publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the EfFcciive Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that putpoK under this
Agiecment, shall be Ihe property of (he Slate, and stall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement, for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it stall designate, stall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, disufoute and otherwise use. in vrliole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in

this Agreement to the contraiy. all obligations of the State hercunder. including,
without limitation, (he continuance of payments hercunder, are contingent upon
the availability or cominued apprepriation of funds, and (n no event stall the State
be liable fbr any payments hercunder in excess of such aviibble or appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the State stall
have the'risht le withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
Shall have the right to leiminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such lermiiution.

EVEhfT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more oftbe following acts or omissions of the Grantee stall constitute
an evem of default hercunder (hereinafter refcned to as *'Evenu ofDefauhT:
Faihue to pcrform.the Projca satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hcietinder, or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereundcr or
Faihue to perform any of (he other covenants and conditions ofthis Agreement.
Upon the occurrence ofany Event ofDcrault, (he Sute may take any one. or mote,
or ail. of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from Ihe date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate (his Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Cnnice notice of termination', and

Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and oidering (tat the portion of the
Grant Amoum Which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
from the date of such notice until such lime as (he State determines that the
Gnnlce has cured the Event of Default stall never be paid to (he Grantee; and
Set offagainst any other obligation the Sute may owe to the Grantee any damages
the Sute suffen by tcasonofany Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement u breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event ofiny early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Inject, the Grantee stall deliver to the Grant Ofticer. not
later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of lermination. ■ leport (hcretnaflcr
rererred to as the "Tetminatioo Repon") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including (he date of terminaiion.
In the event of Terminaiion under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, (he approval of such a Terrointtion Report by the Sute shall enu'tle
(he Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 oT these general
provisions, (he approval of such a Termination Report by the Slate shall in no
event relieve die Grantee from any and all liability for damages susuined or
tncurred by the Sute as a rcsuh of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereundcr.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the Sute or.
except where notice defkult has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may termirate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CQNFLICT QF fNTERF.ST. No offtcer. member of employee of the Grantee,
and no represenutive, officer or emplojree of the Stau of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or locilities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or lesponsibilKies in the review or

Page 2 of 35
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Date: 11/17/23



17.2.

14.

IS.

16.

17.

(7.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

tpproval of the undcTtakini or ourying out of Rich Project, thall ptiticipaie b
any decision relating to (his Agreemeiti whtdi tITectt his or her pcnonil uucrcn
or the interest ofany coqienlbn, partnership, or association b which he or she
is directly or indiiMly imerestcd. nor shall he or she have any persona] or
pecuniary bterest. d irect or'indirect, in this Agreentcnt or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE, b) the perfotrnancc Of ihU
Agreement the Grantee., its empbyees. and any subcontractor or subgrantee of
(he Grantee are b all respects bdependeni contnctors. and ate neither agents
nor employees of (he Slate.. Neither (he Grantee ibr any of its ofllcers.
employMS. agcnis, membos. subbsiibactors or subgrantees, shall have autbortiy
to bind (he Slate nor are'they entitled to any of the beneflts. worimen's
compensatbn or ensolumenis provided by the Sute to hs cmployeci,
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise transfer any bieicst in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the Sute. None of the Project Woih Aall be subcootraaed or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth b Eahibii B without the prior
written consent of the State.

INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantee shall defeiid. bdcfflnily and hold harmless
the Sute. hs ofTiccrs and employees, from and against any arid ad losses sufTcred
by the State. ils.ofTioeri and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties asKited egabst the State, hs ofTicen and employees, by or on behalf 21.
of any pcraon, on account of, tesed on. resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the tos or omissiens of the Giiuitcc or
subeofHracior. or tubgnmee or other agent of(he Ctintce. Notwlthitandbg the
(brcgobg. ttoihbg heitb contaiitcd shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity ofthe State, which Immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant shall survive the termination ofthis agreemenL
(WSURANCL.
The Grantee shall, at its owtt expense, obub and mabtab in Ibrce. or shall
require any subcontractor, subgriintee or assignee peifonning Projea woih to
obuin attd maintain in forec. both fbr the bertcfit of the State, the following

IS.

10.

20.

22.

2).

insurance:

Statutory workers' compicnsatibn titi employees liability bsuance for all
employ^ engaged b the performance of the i^jnt, and
General liability insurance agamst iliciabisofbcidiiy injuries, death or property
damage, b.amoinis.not less than $1,000,000 per ocaitTcnce tni $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and SSOO.OOO for property
damage In any one incident; and

24.

The policies described in subpangriph 17.1 ofthis paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in (he State ofNew Hampshire, issued by underwriters accejxable
to (he Sute. and authorized to do business m the Sute of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the Slate, certincaies of bturence for all icncwal(s) of iosurance
required under this Agreement no bter (hart ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each bsuiince policy.
WAIVER OP BREACH. No failure by the Sute to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be dcmned a waiver of its righu with regard to
(hat Event, or any subsequent Event No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
ihail be deemed a waiver of the right of the Suic. to enforce each and all of (he
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of (he Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other paity shall be deemed to have
been duty delivered or given at the time of mailing certified mail, postage
prcpoid, b a United Sttles Post OfTice addressed to the parties at the addresses
fust above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument b writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by (he Governor and Council of the Slate
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CQMSTRUCnON OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be

construed b accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and b
binding upon and bures to (he benefit ofthc parties and their respective successors
and attignees. The captions and contenti of the "subject" blank are used only as
a maacT ofconvcnience, and arc not to be considered a part of (his Agreemenl or

to be used b determbbg (he btend of the panics hereto.
THIRD PARTIFA The panics hereto do not bicnd to benefit any third panics
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit
ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
ofeounterparts. each ofwbich shall be deemed an original. conRiiutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the panics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings rcbibg hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provbtoos set forth b
Exhibit A hereto are bcorponted as pan of ihb agreemenL
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23-CG-00589-STOP

603 Legal Aid as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Subreciplent") shall be compliant at all
times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below, which are subject to annual
review.

1. The Subreclpleni must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful access
to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes discrimination
on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail providing
language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary. The U.S.
Department of Justice has issued guidancie for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov.

I

2. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court'or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financier assistance and afier a due process hearing against the Subrecipient
on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex. age, or disability, a copy of the
finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice. Grants Management
Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,
810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For addilional information regarding your
obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http;//www.doJ.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded
funding from (his office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the Office
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply) with
any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime Control and
Safe Strieets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)): the Victims of Crime Act (34 U.S.C. §
20U0(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)):
the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § I2291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42
U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §§
12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86); and the
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with Ex. Order
13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations; Executive
Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships with
Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing regulations at
28 C.F.R.Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that paid for
similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or $81.25 per hour.
When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly rate (excluding travel and
subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required. Prior approval requests require additional
justification.

5. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH Department of
Justice (NHDOJ). that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be billed to any federal or
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant #T5JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

State subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ
for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the NH DO].

6. The Subreciplent understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the grant award
document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future years.

7. Requirements of the award; remedies for non-compliance or for materially false statements

The conditions of this award are material requirements of the award. Compliance with any
assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the subreciplent that relate to conduct
during the period of performance also is a material requirement of this award.

By accepting this award on behalf of the subreciplent. the authorized subrecipient official accepts
all material requirements of the award, and specifically adopts, as if personally executed by the
authorized recipient official, all assurances or certifications submitted by or on behalf of the
subrecipient that relate to conduct during the period of performance.

Failure to comply with any one or more of these award requirements, whether a condition set out
in full below, a condition incorporated by reference below, or an assurance or certification
related to conduct during the award period may result in the Office on Violence Against Women
("CVW") or the NH Dept. of Justice ("NHDOJ") taking appropriate action with respect to the
subrecipient and the award. Among other things, OVW or NHDOJ may withhold award funds,
disallow costs, or suspend or terminate the awaid. DOJ, including OVW and NHDOJ. also may
take other legal action as appropriate.

Any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this
award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution
(including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621. and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273). and also may lead
to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise
(including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Should any provision of a requirement of this award be held to be invalid or unenforceable by its
terms, that provision shall first be applied with a limited construction so as to give it the
maximum effect permitted by law. Should it be held. Instead, that the provision Is utterly invalid
or unenforceable, such provision shall be deemed severable from this award.

8. Applicability of Part 200 Uniform Requirements and DOJ Grants Financial Guide

The subrecipient agrees to comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200. as adopted and supplemented by the
Department of Justice (DOJ) in 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (together, the "Part 200 Uniform
Requirements"), and the current edition of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide as posted on the
OVW website, including any updated version that may be posted during the period of
performance.
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions ^ .
Grant # 15j6vW-23-GG-00589-STOP

The recipient also agre^ that all financial records pertinent to this award, including the general
accounting ledger and all supporting documents, are subject to agency review throughout the life
of the award, during the close-out process, and for three years after submission of the final
Federal Financial Report (SF-425) or as long as the records are retained, whichever is longer,
pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.334, 200.337.

9. Requirement to report potentially duplicative funding
•

If the siibrecipient currently has other active awards of federal funds, or if the subrecipient
receives any other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the
subrecipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards
have been, are being,.or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost
items for which funds are provided under this award.

If so, the subrecipient must promptly notify the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit in writing of
the potential duplication, and. if so requested by the NHDOJ, must seek a budget modification or
change-of-project-scope to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding

10. Requirements related to System for Award Management and unique entity identifiers

The subrecipient must comply with applicable requirements regarding the System for Award
Management (SAM), currently accessible at https://www.sam.gov. This includes applicable
requirements regarding registration with SAM. as well as maintaining current information in
SAM.

The subrecipient also must comply with applicable restrictions on subawards ("subgrants") to
first tier subrecipients (first-tier "subgrantees"), including restrictions on subawards to entities
that do not acquire and provide the unique entity identifier required for SAM registration.

The details of the recipient's obligatipns related to SAM and to unique entity identifiers (UEI) are
posted on the OVW website at https://www.Justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award
Condition: Requirements related to System for Award Management (SAM) and unique entity
identifiers), and are incorporated by reference here.

11. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

The subrecipient must ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United
States that is or will be funded (in whole or iii part) with award funds, the recipient (or any
subrecipient at any tier) properly verifies the employment eligibility of the individual who is
being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

The details of the recipient's obligations under this condition are posted on the OVW website at
https://www.justice.gov/ovw/award-conditions (Award Condition: Employment eligibility
verification for hiring under award) and are incorporated by reference here.
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EXHIBIT A

SpedaJ Conditions
Grant# 15JOVW-23-CG-00589-STOP

12. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally Identifiable information
(PII)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must have written procedures in place to respond
in the event of an actual or imminent breach (as defined in 0MB M-17-12) if it (or a
subrecipient)-- 1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or
disposes of personally identifiable information (PII) (as defined in 2 C.F.R. 200.1) within the
scope of an OVW grant-funded program or activity, or 2) uses or operates a Federal information
system (as defined In 0MB Circular A-130).

The subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent
breach of PII to an OVW Program Manager no later than 24 hours after an occurrence of an
actual breach, or the detection of ah imminent breach.

In the event of an actual, or imminent, breach of Personally Identifiable Information of a U.S
Department of Justice funded program or activity by a subrecipient, the subrecipient must have a
procedure in place thdl indicates that the Grants Management Unit will be notified of the breach
by the end of the business day (4:00 PM EST) that the breach was reported. An e-mail will be
sent to Grants@doJ.nh.gov, which e-mails every staff member in the Grants Management Unit,
notifying the Unit of the breach. The GMU Administrator, or designee, will respond to the
subrecipient's e-mail notifying receipt of the notification by the end of the business day that it
was received. If the subrecipient does not receive a confirmation e-mail from the GMU the
subrecipient shall call the NH Department of Justice main number. (603)271-3658, and request
to speak to the GMU and report the breach.

Subrecipients must have written procedures that document the process of notifying the GMU in
the event of a PII breach. Written procedures will be verified during onsite monitoring's
conducted by the GMU.

13. Unreasonable restrictions on competition under the award; association with federal
government.

No recipient (or subrecipient. at any tier) may (in any procurement transaction) discriminate
against any person or entity on the basis of such person or entity's status as an "associate of the
federal government" (or on the basis of such person or entity's status as a parent, affiliate, or
subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out in 2 C.F.R. 200.319(a) or as
specifically authorized by DOJ.

The details of the recipient's obligations under this condition are posted on the OVW website at
https://www.Justlce.gov/ovw7award-conditions (Award Condition: Unreasonable restrictions on
competition under the award; association with federal government) and are incorporated by
reference here.

14. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (Including
reporting requirements and OVW authority to terminate award)

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct
related to the trafTickihg of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients
("subgrantees"), or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the
recipient or of any subrecipient.

The detailis of the subrecipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in
persons are posted on the OVW web site ai https://www.Justice.gov/ovw/award-condiiions
(Award Condition: Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in
persons (including reporting requirements and OVW authority to terminate award)), and are
incorporated by reference here.

15. Determinations of suitability to interact with participating minors

This condition applies to this award if it is Indicated in the application for the award (as approved
by DOJ) (or In the application for any subaward at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement
(solicitation), or an associated federal statute that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be
carried out under the award (whether by the recipient or a subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a
set of individuals under 18 years of age.

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before
certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of
an individual's employment status. The details of this requirement are posted on the OVW web
site at hitps://www.Justice.gov/ovw/award-condltiqns (Award condition: Determination of
suitability required, in advance, for certain individuals who may interact with participating
minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

16. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior
approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for
expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by DOJ). including the provision of food
and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.

Information on the pertinent DOJ definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award
appears on the OVW website at htlps://www.Justice.gov/ovw/conference-planning.

17. OVW Training Guiding Principles

The recipient understands and agrees that any training or training materials developed or
delivered with funding provided under this award must adhere to the OVW Training Guiding
Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees. available at
htips://www.justlce.gdv/ovw/resources-and-faqs-grantees#Discretionary.
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23GG-00589-STOP

18. Effect of failure to address audit issues

The siibrecipient understands and agrees that the NHDOJ (and OJP or OVW, as appropriate)
may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the
NHDOJ) the subrecipient does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from
audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the terms of this award), or other
outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits, Investigations, or reviews of DOJ awards.

19. Potential imposition of additional requirements

The subrecipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the
NHDOJ (and OJP or OVW, as appropriate) during the period of performance for this award, if
the subrecipient is designated as "high- risk" for purposes of the DOJ high-risk grantee list.

20. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondlscrimination - 28
C.F.R. Part 42

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requlrerhents of 28 C.F.R. Part 42, specifically Including any applicable requirements in Subpart
E of 28 C.F.R. Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

21. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C.F.R. Part 38

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38. specifically including any applicable requirements regarding
written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries. Among other
thin^, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basts
of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate
in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to recipient and
subrecipient ("subgrantee") organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities,
as well as rules and requirements that pertain to recipients and subrecipients that are faith-based
or religious organizations.

22. Compliance with DOJ regulations pertaining to dvil rights and nondiscrimination - 28
C.F.R.Part54

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable
requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in
certain "education programs."

23. Restrictions on "lobbying" and policy development

In general,^ a matter of federal law. federal funds may not be used by the recipient, or any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, either directly or indirectly, in support of the enactment,
repeal, modification or adoption Of any law, regulation or policy, at any level of government, in
order to avoid violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1913. The recipient, or any subrecipient ("subgrantee")
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # I5JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

may. however, use federal funds to collaborate with and provide information to federal, state,
local, tribal and territorial public officials and agencies to develop and implement policies and
develop and promote state, local, or tribal legislation or model codes designed to reduce or
eliminate domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking (as those terms are
defined in 34 U.S.C.,§ 12291 (a)) when such collaboration and provision of information is
consistent with the activities otherwise authorized under this grant program.

Another federal'law generally prohibits federal funds awarded by OVW from being used by the
recipient, or any subrecipieht at any tier, to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence)
a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them)
with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract,
subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any
such award. See 31 U.S.C.-§ 1352. Certain exceptions to this law apply, including an exception
that applies to Indian tribes and tribal organizations.

Should any question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a recipient (or
subrecipieht) would or might fall within the scope of these prohibitions, the subrecipient is to
contact the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit for guidance and may not proceed without the
express prior written approval of NHDOJ.

24. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds for
this fiscal year

The recipient, and any subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with ail applicable
restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent
restrictions, for each fiscal year, are set out at https://www.jusiice.gov/ovw/award-conditions
(Award Condition:

General appropriations-law restrictions on use of federal award funds), and are incorporated by
reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of federal funds by a
recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an appropriations-law
restriction, the subrecipient is to contact the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit for guidance, and
may not proceed without the express prior written approval of NHDOJ.

25. Reporting Potential Fraud, Waste, and Abuse, and Similar Misconduct

The recijpieht and any subreciplents ("subgrantees") must promptly refer to the DO] Office of the
Inspector General (GIG) any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, subrecipient,
contractor, subcontractor, or other person has. in connection with funds under this award -- (1)
submitted a claim that violates the False Glalms Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil
violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.

Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct involving'or relating to funds under this award
should be reported to the GIG by- (1) online submission accessible via the GIG webpage at
https://oig.Justice.gov/hotllne/contact-grants.htm (select "Submit Report Gnline"); (2) mail
directed to: U.S. Department of Justice. Office of the Inspector Gerieral, Investigations Division,
ATTN: Grantee Reporting, 950 Pennsylvania Ave.. NW, Washington. DC 20530; (3) by
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Special Conditions
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facsimile directed to the DOJ OIG Fraud Detection Office {Atin: Grantee Reporting) at (202)
616-9881 (fax).

Additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at http://www.usdoi. pov/oig.

26. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters

No recipient or subrecipient ("subgrantee") under this award, or entity that receives a
procurement contract or subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee
or contractor to sign an internal conHdentiaiity agreement or statement that prohibits or
otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of
waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal
department or agency authorized to receive such information.

The foregoing is not Intended, and shall not be understood by the agency making this award, to
coritravene requirements applicable to Standard Forrh 312 (which relates to classified
information). Form 4414 (which relates to sensitive compartmented information), or any other
form issued by a federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified
information.

1. In accepting this award, the subrecipient-

a. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal confidentiality agreements or
statements from employees or contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently
restrict (or purport to "prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from reporting waste,
fraud, or abuse as described above; and

b. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring its employees or
contractors to execute agreements or statemeiits that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport
to prohibit or restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immefdiately stop any further obligations of award funds, will provide prompt written
notification to the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or permit resumption
of) such obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

2. If the subrecipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards ("subgrants").
procurement contracts, or both—

a. it represents that-

(1) it has determined that no other entity that the subrecipient's application proposes may or will
receive award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"). procurement contract, or
subcontract under a procurement contract) either requires or has required internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or contractors that currently
prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

(2) it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate factual basis, to support this
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

representation; and

b. It certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor entity
that receives funds under this award is or has l^en requiring its employees or contractors to
execute agreements or statements that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or
restrict), reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will immediately stop any
further obligations of award funds to or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification
to the federal agency making this award, and wili resume (or permit resumption oO such
obligations dniyif expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

27. Compliance with 41 H.S.C. 4712 (including prohibitions on reprisal; notice to employees)

The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must comply with, and is subject to, all
applicable provisions of'41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit, under
specified circumstances, discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's
disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of
federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger
to public health or safety, or a violation of law. rule, or regulation related to a federal grant. The
subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing (and in the predominant native language
of the workforce), of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

Should a question arise as to the applicability of the provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712 to this award,
the recipient is. to contact the NHDOj or (OJP or OVW, as appropriate) for guidance.

28. Encouragement of policies to ban text messaging while driving

Pursuant to Executive Order 13513, "Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While
Driving." 74 Fed. Reg. 51225 (October 1, 2009). DOJ encourages recipients and subrecipients
("subgrantees") to adopt and enforce policies banning employees from text messaging while
driving any vehicle during the course of performing work funded by this award, and to establish
workplace safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

29. Requirement to disclose whether recipient is designated high risk by a federal
grant-making agency outside of DOJ.

If the recipient is designated high risk by a federal grant-making agency outside of DOJ,
currently or at any time during the course of the period of performance under this award, the
subrecipient must disclose that fact and certain related information to OVW by email to.
OVW.GFMD@usdoJ.gov. For purposes of this disclosure, high risk includes any status under
which a federal awarding agency provides additional oversight due to the recipient's past
performance, or other programmatic or financial concerns with the recipient.

The recipient's disclosure must include the following; (1) the federal awarding agency that
currently designates the recipient high risk; (2) the date the recipient was designated high risk;
(3) the high-risk point of contact at that federal awarding agency (name, phone number, and
em^l address); and (4) the reasons for the high-risk status, as set out by the federal awarding
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

agency.

30. Availability of general terms and conditions on OVW website

The subreciplent agrees to follow the applicable set of general terms and conditions that are
available at https;//www.justice.gov/ovw/award-cohditions. These do not supersede any specific
conditions in this award document.

31. Compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements

The subrecipient agrees to comply with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements, which
may include, among other relevant authorities, the Violence Against Women Act of 1994, P.L.
103-322, the violence Against Women Act of 2000. P.L. 106-386, the Violence Against Women
and Department of Justice Reauthorizaiion Act of 2005, P.L. 109-162, the Violence Against
Women Reauthorizaiion Act of 2013, P.L. 113-4, the Violence Against Women Act
Reauthorizaiion Act of 2022. P.L. 117-103, the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of
1968, 34 U.S.C. 10101 etseq..and the OVWs Implementing regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 90.

32. Compliance with solicitation requirements

The subrecipient agrees that it must be in compliance with requirements outlined in the
solicitation under which the approved application was submitted, the applicable Solicitation
Companion Guide, and any program-specific frequently asked questions (FAQs) on the OVW
website (https://www.Justice.gov/ovw/resources-and-faqs-grantees). The program solicitation.
Companion Guide, and any program specific FAQs are hereby incorporated by reference into
this award.

33. VAWA 2013 nohdiscrimlnatlon condition

The subrecipient acknowledges that 34 U.S.C. § 12291(b) (13) prohibits subrecipients of OVW
awards from excluding, denying benefits to. or discriminating against any person on the basis of
actual or perceived race, color, religion, national origin, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation,
or disability in any program or activity funded in whole or in part by OVW. Subrecipients may
provide sex-segregated or sex-specific programming if doing so is necessary to the essential
operations of the program, so long as the subrecipient provides comparable services to those who
cannot be provided with the sex-segregated or sex-specific programming.

The subrecipient agrees that it will comply with this provision. The subrecipient also agrees to
ensure that any subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier will comply with this provision.

34. Misuse of award funds

The subrecipient understands and agrees that misuse of award funds may result in a range of
penalties, including suspension of current and future funds, suspension or debarment from
federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under an award, and civil and/or criminal
penalties.
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Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23-CG-00589-STOP

35. Limitation on use of fiinds to approved activities

The subrecipieht agrees that grant funds will be used only for the purposes described in the
subrecipient's application, unless the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit determines that any of
these activities are out of scope or unallowable. The subreclpient must not undertake any work or
activities that are not described in the subrecipient's application, award documents, or approved
budget, and must not use staff, equipment, or other goods or services paid for with grant funds
for such work or activities, without prtor'written approval by the NHDOJ.

36. Non-supplantation

The subreclpient agrees that grant funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, non-federal
funds that would otherwise be available for the activities under this grant.

37. Confidentiality and infoimation sharing

The subreclpient agrees to comply with the provisions of 34 U-S.C. § 12291(b)(2), nondisclosure
of confidential or private information, which includes creating and maintaining documentation of
compliance, such as policies and procedures for release of victim information.

The subreclpient also agrees to comply with the regulations implementing this provision at 28
CFR 90.4(b) and Trequently Asked Questions (FAQs) on the VAWA Confidentiality Provision
(34 U;S.C..§ 12291(b)(2))" on the OVW website at
htlps://www.justlce.gov/ovw/resources-and-faqs-graniees. The subreclpient also agrees to ensure
that all subrecipients ("subgrantees") at any tier meet these requirements.

38. Activities that compromise victim safety and recovery or undermine offender
accountability

The subreclpient agrees that grant funds will not support activities that compromise victim safety
and recovery or undermine offender accountability, such as: procedures or policies that exclude
victims from.receiving safe shelter, advocacy services, counseling, and other assistance based on
their actual or perceived sex, age, immigration status, race, religion, sexual orientation, gender
identity, mental health'condition, physical health condition, criminal record, work in the sex
industry, or the age and/or sex of their children; procedures or policies that compromise the
confidentiality of information and privacy of persons receiving OVW-funded services;
procedures or policies that impose requirements on victims in order to receive services (e.g., seek
an order of protection, receive counseling, participate in couples' counseling or mediation, report
to law enforcement, seek civil or criminal remedies, etc.); procedures or policies that fail to
ensure service providers conduct safety planning with victims; project design and budgets that
fail to account for the access needs of participants with disabilities and participants who have
limited English proficiency or are Deaf or hard of hearing; or any other .activities outlined in the
solicitation or companion guide under which the application was submitted.
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant# I5JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

39. Policy for response to workplace-related incidents of sexual misconduct, domestic violence,
and dating violence

The recipient, and any subrecipient at any tier, must have a policy, or Issue a policy within 270
days of the award date, to address workplace-related incidents of sexual misconduct, domestic
violence, and dating violence Involving an employee, volunteer, consultant, or contractor. The
details of this requirement are posted on the OVW web site at
hitps://www.justlce.gov/ovw/award-condilions (Award Condition: Policy for response to
workplace-related sexual rhisconduct. domestic violence, and dating violence), and are
incorporated'by reference here.

40. Termination or suspension for cause

The Director of OVW or the NHDOJ, upon a finding that there has been substantial failure by
the subrecipient to comply with applicable laws, regulations, and/or the terms and conditions of
the award or relevant solicitation, will terminate or suspend until satisfied that there Is no longer
such failure, all or part of the award, In accordance with the provisions of 28 C.F.R. Fart 18, as
applicable mutatis mutandis. The federal regulation providing uniform rules for termination of
grants and cooperative agreements is 2 CFR 200.340.

41. Performance progress reports and final report submission

The subrecipient agrees to provide OVW with specific information regarding subawards
("subgrants") made under this award. The subrecipient agrees to submit an annual report that
Includes: a) an assessment of whether stated goals and objectives were achieved; b) information
on the effectiveness of activities carried out with grant funds, including the number of persons
served and the number of persons seeking services who could not be served; c) information on
each siibaward made; and d) such other Information as OVW may prescribe.

Subreclpients are required to submit this report after the end of each calendar year but no later
than March 15th each year. Recipients and subreclpients must use the designated forms and/or
systems made available by OVW for performance reporting, which identify the Information that
recipients and subreclpients must collect and report as a condition of receiving funding under this
award.

42. Subrecipient program income

Program income, as defined by 2 C.F.R. 200.80, means gross Income earned by a non-federal
entity that is directly generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the federal award
during the period of performance. Without prior approval, program income must be deducted
from total allowable costs to determine the net allowable costs.

In order to add program income to a subaward, subreclpients must seek approval from the
NHDOj prior to generating any program income. Any program income added to a subaward
must be used to support activities that were approved in the budget and follow the conditions of
the subaward agreement. Any program income approved by the NHDOJ Grants Management
Unit must be reported by the subrecipient to the NHDOJ Grants Management Unit so that it is
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

reported on the quarterly Federal Financial Report (SF-425) in accordance with the addition
alternative. If the program income amount changes (Increases or decreases) during the project
period, the subrecipient must provide approval by the end of the project period.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in audit findings for both the recipient and
the subrecipient.

43. Subrecipient product monitoring

The subrecipient agrees to be monitored to ensure that materials and products (written, visual, or
sound) developed with OVW formula grant program funding fall within the scope of the grant
program and do not compromise victim safety.

44. Publications disclaimer for STOP Formula subrecipients

The subrecipient agrees that all materials and publications (written. Web-based, audio-visual, or
any other format) resulting from subaward activities shall contain the following statement:

"This project was supported by Subgrant No. awarded by the state administering
officefor the Office on Violence Against Women, U.S. Department ofJustice's STOP Formula
Grant Program. The opinions, findings, conclusions, and recommendations expressed in this
publicatipn/program/exhibition are those ofthe author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the
views ofthe state or the U.S. Department of Justice."

45. Copyrighted works

Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.315(b). the recipient may copyright any work that is subject to
copyright and was developed, or for which ownership was acquired, under this award. OVW
reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise
use the work, in whole or In part (including in the creation of derivative works), for federal
purposes, and to authorize others to do so.

OVW also reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or
otherwise use. in whole or in part (Including in the creation of derivative works). any work
developed by a subreciiiient Csubgrantee") of this award, for federal purposes, and to authorize
others to do so.

In addition, the recipient (or subrecipient. contractor, or subcontractor of this award at any tier)
must obtain advance written approval from the OVW program manager assigned to this award,
and must comply with all conditions specified by the program manager in connection with .that
approval, before: 1) using award funds to purchase ownership of. or a license to use. a
copyrighted work; or 2) incorporating any copyrighted work, or portion thereof, into a new work
develo^d under this award.

It is the responsibility of the recipient (and of each subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor as
applicable) to ensure that this condition is included in any subaward. contract, or subcontract
under this awards
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

46. Consultant compensation rates

The subrecipient acknowledges lhat consultants paid with award funds generally may not be paid
at a rate In excess of $81.25 per hour, not to exceed $650 per day. To exceed this specified
maximum rate, recipients must submit to OVW a detailed justification and have such
Justification approved by OVW, prior to obligation or expenditure of such funds.

Issuance of this award or approval of the award budget alone does not indicate approval of any
consultant rate in excess of $81.25 per hour, not to exceed $650 per day. Although prior approval
is not required for consultant rates below this specified maximum rate, subrecipients are required
to maintain documentation to support all daily or hourly consultant rates.

47. Ongoing compliance with statutory certifications

The subrecipient agrees that compliance with the statutory certification requirements is an
ongoing responsibility during the award period and that, at a minimum, a hold may be placed on
the subrecipient's funds for noncompliance with any of the requirements of 34 U.S.C. § 10449
(regarding rape exam payments). 34 U.S.C. § 10449(e) (regardingjudicial notification), 34
U.S.C. § 10450 (regarding certain fees and costs), and 34 U.S.C. § 10451 (regarding
polygraphing of sexual assault victims), and 34 U.S.C. 10454 (regarding victim-center
prosecution), and 34 U.S.C. 10446(d)(6)(regarding award conditions).

Non-compliance with any of the foregoing may also result in termination or suspension of the
grant or other remedial measures, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

48. Requirements for subrecipients providing legal assistance

The subrecipient agrees that the legal assistance eligibility requirements, as set forth below, are a
continuing obligation on the part of the subrecipient. The legal assistance eligibility requirements
are:

(1) any person providing legal assistance through a program funded under this grant program

(A) has demonstrated expertise in providing legal assistance to victims of domestic violence,
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking in the targeted population; or

(B) (i) is partnered with an entity or person that has demonstrated expertise described in
subparagraph (A); and (il) has completed or will complete training in connection with
domestic violence, dating violence, stalking, or sexual assault and related legal issues.
Including training on evidence-based risk factors for domestic and dating violence homicide;

(2) any training program conducted in satisfaction of the requirement of paragraph (1) has been
or will be developed with input from and in collaboration with a state, local, territorial, or tribal
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking victim
service provider or coalition, as well as appropriate state, local, territorial, and tribal law
enforcement officials;
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EXHIBIT A

Special Conditions
Grant # 15JOVW-23-GG-00589-STOP

(3) any person or organization providing legal assistance through this grant program has
informed and will continue to inform state, local, territorial, or tribal domestic violence, dating
violence, stalking, or sexual assault programs and coalitions, as well as appropriate state and
local law enforcement officials of their work; and

(4) the recipient's organizational policies do not require mediation or counseling involving
offenders and victims physically together, in cases where sexual assault, dating violence,
domestic violence, or child sexual abuse is an issue. The recipient also agrees to ensure that any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier will comply with this condition.

50. Due to significant limitations and regulatory differences set forth by Violence Against Women
Act Reauthorlzatlon Act of 2022. P.L 117-103. funding received from federal fiscal year 2023
STOP Violence Against Worhen Act formula grant, and federal fiscal years thereafter, must not
be commingled with STOP Violence Against Women Act funding from the 2022 federal fiscal
funding or preceding federal fiscal years.
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EXHIBIT B

■SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipieni shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice
as the State Agency (DOj) for expenses incurred and services for victims of sexual
assault, domestic violence, dating violence, and stalking.

2. The Subrecipieni shall be reimbursed by the DOj based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipieni shail submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within Hfteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1. the first quarterly
report is due on April J9'' or 15 days after the dose of the Hrst quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipieni is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses both
state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of this
office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years after the close of the
Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipieni shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipieni and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipieni to accommodate the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to;
NH Department of Justice
Grants Management Unit
1 Granite Place, South
Concord, NH 03301
1 (603) 271-8091 brtravis.n.teeboom@doj.nh.gov
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EXHIBIT C

- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Subreclpient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3., The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form C-I section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $40,000 of the
total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 1/1/2024,
whichever is later, to 12/31/2024, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient may

apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal grant
end date, not after. No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in
writing.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs incurred
under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, or after 12/31/2024. unless
a grant extension is approved in writing by DOJ.
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EXHIBIT D

-EEOP REPORTING. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

I. Steven B. Scudder, Interim Executive Director [responsible ofTiciah. certify that 603 Legal
Aid [SubrecipJen^ has completed the EEO reporting tool certification within the last two years
at: httDs://olD.g6v/abdut/ocr/faq ^oD.htm on ii/i9/202i [dat^

It is understood that subreclpients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including noh-profits and subi^ipiehts with less than 50 employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs: Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP Training Reauirements for Subrecioients

Steven B. Scudder [official that completed training has completed

the EEOP training at httDs://oiD.goWabout/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-training.htm on:

[date]. The EEOP training must be completed at least once every
two years.

DO T Discrimination Complaint Process

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age. sexual orientation or gender
Identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights | Grants
Management Unit I NH Department of lustice

Subrecipient Discrimination Complaint Process

I further certify that the 603 Legal Aid [Subrecipien^ will comply with applicable federal civil
rights laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of services and has a
policy or written procedure in place for accepting discrimination-based complaints from
employees and program beneficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made publically
available to program beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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EXHIBIT D

Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement. I certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following are true and correct;

(1) I have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) I certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with alt award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by:the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination. and. in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabiiitatibn Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)) ; section 1407(e) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency (prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b) (l3) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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EXHIBIT D

c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and
d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, I make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to. 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information). 23 (criminal Intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subreciplents and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will.give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to. and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 10251(a)(l7)). I assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of perfd'rmance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are imposed on it<by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and

b. subject to par. a. each ̂ ch institution comply with its own representations, if any.
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate,^r^earch independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
difficiai statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (Including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

(9) I assure that, if the Subrecipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—
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EXHIBIT D

a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328. which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employmerit is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Ofiice of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office). I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(l 1).
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law-including, but not limited to.
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act-seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial arid ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C §l0382(c)(ll).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program. I assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3). that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the appiication that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

Steven B. Scudder Interim Executive Director

Name of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signor

Scudd&r 11/17/23

Signature Date
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EXHIBIT E

-NON-SUPPLANTING CERTIFICATION -

Supplanting defined
Federal funds must be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and must not
replace' those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Supplanting shall be the
subject of application review, as well as pre-award review, post-award monitoring, and audit. If

there is a potential presence of supplanting, the Subreciplent or grantee will be required to supply
documentation demonstrating that the reduction In non-Federal resources occurred for reasons

other than the receipt or expected receipt of Federal funds. For certain programs, a written
certirication may be requested by the awarding agency or recipient agency stating that Federal
funds will not be used to supplant State or local funds will not be used to supplant State or local
funds. See the OJP Financial Guide (Part II. Chapter 3)
httD://www.oiD.usdol.gov/nnanclalgulde/part2/par(2chaD3.htm.

Supplanting and job retention
A recipient or subreciplent may use federal funds to retain Jobs that, without the use of the
federal money, would be lost. If the grantee is planning on using federal funds to retain Jobs, it
must be able to substantiate that, without the funds, the Jobs would be lost. Substantiation can be.

but is not limited to. one of the following forms: an official memorandum, official minutes of a
county or municipal board meeting or any documentation, that is usual and customarily produced
when making determinations about employment. The documentation must describe the

terminated positions and that the termination Is because of lack of the availability of State or
local funds.

The 603 Legal Aid (Subreclpient) certifies that any funds awarded through grant number

2024VAW2Q shall be used to supplement existing funds for program activities and will not

replace (supplant) nonfederal funds that have been appropriated for the purposes and goals of the

grant.

The 603 Legal Aid (Subreciplent) understands that supplanting violations may result in a range

of penalties, including but not limited to suspension of future funds under this program,

suspension or debarment from federal grants, recoupment of monies provided under this grant,

and civil and/or criminal penalties.

Printed Name and Titje of Authorized Signor: Sieven b. scudder, imcfim Eiecmive Oireciof

Signature: 8- Date
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exhibit f

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipienis should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certincation to which
they are required to attest. Subrecipients should also review the instructions for certification
Included in the regulations before completing this form. The certifications shall be treated as a
materiM represehtatioh of fact upon which reliance will be placed when the U.S. Department of
Justice ("Department") determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative
agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As required by 31 U.S.C. § 1352, as implemented by 28 C.F.R. Part 69, the Subrecipient certifies
and assures (to the extent applicable) the following:
(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Merriber of Congress In connection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of
any cooperative agreement, or the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification
of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

(b) If the Subrecipient's request for Federal funds is in excess of $100,000, and any funds other
than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this
Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard
Form - LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" in accordance with its (and any DOj awarding
agency's) instructions; and

(c) The Subrecipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subgrants and procurement contracts (and their subcontracts) funded with
Federal award funds and shall ensure that any certifications or lobbying disclosures required of
recipients of such subgrants and procurement contracts (or their subcontractors) are made and
filed in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 1352.

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS
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EXHIBIT F

A. Pursuant to Department regulations on nonprocurement debarment and suspension
Implemented at 2 C.F.R. Part 2867, and to other related requirements, the Subrecipient certifies,
with respect to prospective participants in a primary tier "covered transaction," as defined at 2
C.F.R. § 2867.20(a). that neither it nor any of its principals—
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a
denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) has within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of a felony criminal
violation under any F^eral law. or been convicted or had a civil judgment rendered against it for
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (Federal, State, tribal, or local) transaction or private agreement or
transaction;

violation of .Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion or receiving
stolen property, making false claims, or obstruction ofjustice, or commission of any offense
indicating a lack oi^f business integrity or business honesty that seriously and directly affects its
(or its principals') present responsibility;

(c) is presently Indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State, tribal, or iocai) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(b) of this certification; and/or

(d) has within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions
(Federal, State, tribal, or local) terminated for cause or default.

B. Where the Subrecipient is unabie to certify to any of the statements in this certification, it
shall attach an explanation to this application. Where the Subrecipient or any of its principals
was convicted, within a three-year period preceding this application, of a felony criminal
violation under any Federal law, the Subrecipient also must disclose such felony criminal
conviction in writing to the Department (for OjP Subrecipients, to OJP at
Ojpcompiiancereporting@usdoj.gov; for OVW Subrecipients, to OVW at
OVW.GFMD@usdoj.gov; or for COPS Subrecipients, to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov),
unless such disclosure has aiiready been made.

3. FEDERAL TAXES

A. If the Subrecipient is a corporation, it certifies either that (I) the corporation has no unpaid
Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative

remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, that is not being paid in a timely manner
pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability, or
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EXHIBIT F

(2) the corporation has provided written notice of such an unpaid tax liability (or liabilities) to
the Department (for OJP

Subrecipienis. to OJP at Ojpcompliancereporting@usdoJ.gov: for OVW Subrecipients. to OVW
at OVW.GFMD@usdbj.gov: or for COPS Subrecipients. to COPS at AskCOPSRC@usdoj.gov).

B. Where the Subrecipient is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certincation, it
shall attach an explanation to this application.

4. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, as implemented at 28 C.F.R. Part 83.
Subpart F. for grantees, as defined at 28 C.F.R. §§ 83.620 and 83.650:
A. The Subrecipient certifies and assures that it will, or will continue to. provide a drug-free
workplace by—

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possessiion, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in its workplace and
specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition:

(b) Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:

(2) The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace:

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the
workplace:

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the award
be giveii a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a):

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the award, the employee will —

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement: and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of the employee's conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction:
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EXHIBIT F

(e) Nblifying the Department, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d) (2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title of any such
convicted employee to the Department, as follows:

For COPS award recipients - COPS Office, 145 N Street. NE. Washington, DC, 20530;
For OJP and OVW award recipients - U.S. Department of Justice. Office of Justice Programs.
ATTN: Control Desk. 810 7th Street, N.W.. Washington, D.C. 20531.

Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected award;
(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency; and

(g)Maklng a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c). (d). (e). and (f).

If you are unable to sigri this certification, you must attach an explanation to this
certification.

Steven B. SciKJder Interim Executive Oirectof
Name of Authorized Signor Title of Authorized Signor

Signature Date

603 Legal Aid 93 North Main Street. Suite 200. Concord NH 03301

Name and Address of Agency
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Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
(FFATA) Compliance

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires
Subrecipients of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or
after October 1. 2010. to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-
tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant
modifications result In a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA
reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part [ReportingSubaward and Executive Compensation
Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
,9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government,
and those revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with the
provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282
and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 [Reporting Subaward and Executive
Compensation In formation), and further agrees to have one of the Subrecipient's
representaUvets), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement execute the following
Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.
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EXHIBIT G

Certification

Steven B. Scudder Interim Executive Director
Name of Authorized Signer Title of Authorized Signor

Su<2d&r n/17/23

Signature Date
(

As the Subrecipient Identifi^ in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, I certify that the
responses to the below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The Unique Entity ID (SAM) number for your entity is: xnkdq5AC4HW6

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (I) 80 percent.or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal
contracts; subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2)
$25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop
here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the
following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securiti^.Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the
following:

5. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in
your busine^ or organization are as follows:
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Certification

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:
I

Name: Amount:
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EXHIBIT H

U.S. Department of Justice
Office on Violence Against Women

Acknowledgement of Notice of Statutory Requirement to Comply with the
Confidentiality and Privacy Provisions of the Violence Against Women Act,, as

Amended

Under section 40002(b)(2) of the Violence Against Women Act. as amended (42 U.S.C.
13925(b)(2)), grantees and subgrantees with funding from the Office on Violence Against
Women (OVW) are required to meet the following terms with regard to nondisclosure of
confidential or private information and to document their compliance. By signature on this form,
applicants for grants from OVW are acknowledging that thsit they have notice that, if awarded
funds, they will be required to comply with this provision, and will mandate that subgrantees, if
any. comply with this provision, and will create and maintain documentation of compliance, such
as policies and procedures for release of victim information, and will mandate that subgrantees,
if any, will do so as well.

(A) In general
In order to ensure the safety of adult, youth, and child victims of domestic violence, dating
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and their families, grantees and subgrantees under this
subchapter shall protect the confidentiality and privacy of persons receiving services.

(B) Nondisclosure
Subject to subparagraphs (C) and (D), grantees and subgrantees shall not—
(i) disclose, reveal, or release any personally identifying information or individual information
collected in connection with services requested, utilized, or denied through grantees' and
subgrantees" programs, regardless of whether the information has been encoded, encrypted,
hashed, or otherwise protected; or
(ii) disclose, reveal, of release individual client Information without the informed, written,
reasonably time-limited consent of the person (or in the case of an unemancipated minor, the
minor and (he parent or guardian or in the case of legal incapacity, a court-appointed guardian)
about whom Infofmatibn is sought, whether for this program or any other Federal, Slate, tribal,
or territorial grant program, except that consent for release may not be given by the abuser of the
minor, incapacitated person, or the abuser of the other parent of the minor.
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EXHIBIT H

If a minor or a person with a legally appointed guardian is pernutted by law to receive
services without the parent's or guardian's consent, the minor or.person with a guardian may
release information without additional consent.

(C) Release
If release of information described in subparagraph (B) is compelled by statutory or
court mandate—

(i) grantees and subgrantees shall make reasonable attempts to provide notice to victims
affected by the disclosure of Information; and
(ii) grantees and subgrantees shall take steps necessary'to protect the privacy and safely of
the persons affected by the release of the information.

(b) Information sharing
(i) Grantees and subgrantees may share—
(I) nonpersonally identifying data in the aggregate regarding services to their clients and
nonpersonally identifying demographic information in order to comply with Federal,
State, tribal, or territorial reporting, evaluation, or data collection requirements;
(II) court-generated Iriformation and law enforcement-generated Information contained In
secure, governmental registries for protection order enforcement purposes; and
(III) law enforcement-generated and prosecution-generated information necessary for
law enforcement and prosecution purposes.
(ii) In no circumstances may—
(I) an adult, youth, or child victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking be required to provide a consent to release his or her personally identifying
information as a condition of eligibility for the services provided by the grantee or subgrantee;
(II) any personally identifying Information be' shared in order to comply with Federal, tribal,
or Stale reporting, evaluation, or data collection requirements, whether for this program or
any other Federal, tribal, or State grant program.

(E) Statiitbrily mandated reports of abuse or neglect
Nothing in this section prohibits a grantee or subgrantee from reporting suspected abuse
or neglect, as those terms are defined and specifically mandated by the State or tribe
involved.

(F) Oversight
Nothing In this paragraph shall preverit the Attorney General from disclosing grant activities
authorized in this Act to the chairman and ranking members of the Committee on the Judiciary
of the House of Representatives and the Committee on the judiciary of the Senate exercising
Congressional oversight authority. All disclosures shall protect confidenUality and omit
personally identifying Information, including location information about individuals.

(C) Confidentiality assessment and assurances
Grantees and subgrantees must document their compliance with the confidentiality and
privacy provisions required under this section.
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As the duly authorized representative of the applicant. I hereby acknowledge that the applicant has received
notice of that If awarded funding they will comply with the above statutory requirements. This acknowledgement
shall be treated as a material rcpresentairon of fact upon which the Department of Justice will rely If it determines
to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

Steven B. Scudder Interim Executive Director
Typed Name of Authorized Representative Title

603-224-3333
Telephone Number.

Stwtfv B. 11/17/2023
Signature of Authorized Representative Date Signed

603 Legal Aid

Agency Name

Public Reporting Burden Paperwork Reduction Act Notice. Under the Paperwork
Reduction Act. a person is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it
displays a currently valid 0MB control number. We try to create forms that are accurate, can
be easily understood, and which impose the least possible burden on you to provide us with
information. The estimated average time to complete and file this form is 60 minutes per form.
If you have comments regarding the accuracy of this estimate, or suggestions for making this
form simpler, you can write to the Office on Violence Against Women, U.S. Department of
Justice. 145 N Street, NE, 10'*' Floor. Washington. DC 20530.

1yjv»lf>Alast
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Sconlan, Sccretn/y of Stot« of the Slate of New Hompshire, do hereby certify ihot 603 LEGAL AID is o New

Hampshire Nonprofii Corporation registered lo transact business in New Hompshire on NovembcrOl, 1995. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretaiy of State's oftlcc have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTlcc is

concerned.

Business ID; 239384

Certificate Number: 0006216018

m%

%

s
o

%

%

fN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 2Sth day of April A.O. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of Slate



INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

P. 0. BOX 2S08

CINCINNATI. OH 4S201

Employer IdenciCicacion Number:

MAY 0 1 2000
170S30BS782010

LEGAL ADVICE & REFERRAL CENTER INC Contact Person:

C/0 STEVEN V CAMERIKO MARK G PBARCE IDB 31191
33 N MAIN ST Contact Telephone Number:
CONCORD, MH 03301-4930 (877) 829-5500

Our Letter Dated:

January 1996
Addendum Applies:

No

Dear Applicant:

This modifies our letter of the above date in which we stated chat you

would be treated as an organization that io not a private foundation until the
expiration of your advance ruling period.

Your exempt status under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code ao an
organization described in section SOl(c)(3) is still in effect. Based on the
information you submitted, we have determined chat you are noc a private
foundation within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are an
organization of the type described in section 509 (a) (1) and 170(b)(1)(A! (vi) .

Grantors and contributors may rely on this determination unless Che
Internal Revenue Service publishes notice to the contrary. However, if you
lose your section 509(a)(1) status, a grantor or contributor may not rely on
this determination if he or she was in part responsible for, or was aware of.
the act or failure to act^ or the substantial or material change on the part of
the organization that resulted in your lose of such status, or if he or she
acquired knowledge that the Internal Revenue Service had given notice that you
would no longer be classified as a section S09(a)(1) organization.

You are required to make your annual Information return. Form 990 or
Forrn 990-EZ, available for public inspection for three years after the later
of Che due dace of the return or the date the return is tiled. You are also ^
required CO make available for public inspection your exemption application,
any supporting documents, and your exemption letter. Copies of these
documents are also required to be provided to any individual upon written or in
person request without, charge other than reasonable fees for copying and
postage. You' may fulfill this requirement by placing these documents on the
Internet. Penalties may be imposed for failure to comply with these
requirements. Additional information is available in Publication 557,
Tax-Exempt Status for Your Organization, or you nay call pur toll free
number shown above•

If we have indicated in the-heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the addendum enclosed is an integral part of this letter.

Letter 1050 (DO/CG>



-2-

LBGAL ADVICE & REFERRAL CENTER INC

Because thie letter could help resolve any questions about your private
foundation status, please keep it in your permanent records.

If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and
telephone number are shovm above.

Sincerely yours,

Steven T. Millar

Steven T. Miller i
Director, Exempt Organizations

Letter 1050 (DO/CG)



Certificate of Authority

I, Melinda S. Gehris, hereby certify that I am duly elected Chair of 603 Legol Aid.
I hereby certify that the following Is o true copy of o vote token ot c meeting of
the Board of Directors duly colled and held on April 13, 2023 at which a quorum
of Directors participated.

Voted; that Steven Scudder, Esquire, Interim Executive Director is, and has been
since March 1, 2023. duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on
behalf of 603 Legal Aid with the State of New Hampshire end any of its agencies
or departments and further is and has been authoirzed to execute any
documents which may in his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the
purpose of;this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains
in force and effect as of the date of any contract to which this certificate Is
attached.

I further certify that is it understood that the State of New Hampshire will risly on
this certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the
position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that th%re are any limits on the authority of the named individual to
bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are epxressly stated herein.

Date:' Attest:

Melinda S. Gehris, Board Chair



certificate of liability insurance
OATS (MKOOrmY)

01/12/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE

POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S),

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:. If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the potlcy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,
subject to the terms and conditions of the potlcy. certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to (he ceitHlcate holder In Heu of such endorsement(e).

eROOUCEft

USI INSURANCE SERVICES LLC/PHS

04041093

The Hartford Business Service Center

3600 Wiseman Blvd

San Antonio, TX 76251

CONTACT

NAMR:

PHONC (666) 467-6730
(A/C.Mo.e*t|: (A/C.Mo):

C-MAS.

ADDRESS;

MSURER(8}ArF0RDIN0C0VERA0e NAIC«

WSUREO

603 Legal Aid

93 N STATE ST STE 200

CONCORD NH 03301-4334

aisuRCR A: Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424

MSURSR B: Twin Oily Fire Insurance Company 29459

mSURSRC:

INSURER o:

wsunaxe:

INSURER P:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INOICATED.NOTW1THSTANOING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
.CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE
'TERMS. EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSP TYPe OF MSilRANCe ADOL

mm

SUSR

WVD
POLICY NUMBER

POUCV EPF

/WMmnfYYYVJ

POLICY eXF

fWMfflfWYYYVI
UMTTS

A

COMUERCIAIL GENERAL UAStUTY

iIadeQoccur
ability

X 04 SBA EOS895 02/21/2024 02/21/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE | $2,000,000

CLAAISJ $500,000

X ^neral Ll MEO EXP (Anr ont pt(MA> $10,000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY $2,000,000

.SI

J

N\ AGCREOATE UMIT APPLIES PER:

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000

PRODUCTS - COMPX)P AGO $4,000,000

A

AU

X

roMoen.e UABAJTY

1 ANY AUTO
04 SBA E0569S 02/21/2024 02/21/2025

CGUSINEOSMGLE LIMfT

lEi ledrnmn

eOOILY INJURY (Pw pinon)

$2,000,000

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIREO j
AUTOS

SCHEDULED

ALTTOS
N0N.0WNED

AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (P>r •eddtfii)

X
PROPERTY DAMAGE

(PprpCdMnt)

UMBRELLA LMB

aXCSSSUAB R
OCCLJR

CLAIMS-

MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGCREOATE

|deg| retemtx>n S

B

WORKERS COMFCNSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABILrTY

ANY TM

PROPRJETOR/PARTNEWEXECUnVE ,—

OFFICCRniEuaeR excluded?
(MaftdMorylnN^
U ym. dmeribt wndw
(*Sr.RIPT«M OF OPERATOMS bMaw

WA 04 WEC NJ6691 02/21/2024 02/21/2025

w KA 1 OTH.
STATUTE 1 ER

E.L EACH ACCOENT $500,000

E.L DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE $500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LOUT $1,000,000

oescffiprrow Of OfeftAnOtfS/LOeAnO/tS/ve/UCieS IACORO 1«1. AddSefwl Rwiwrtt SelwduN. mtr M •ItMtwe V men tpeem !• nquir^)

Those usual to the Insureirs OperaUons. Certificate holder Is an additional Insured per the Business Liability Covaraga Form SS0006 attached to (his
poncy.

NH Oepartment of Justice

1 GRANITE PUCE. SOUTH

CONCORD NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THB ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED

BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WIU BE DELIVERED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOROEO RePRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All righto rvMfved.

The ACORO name end logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts
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NnKnn:n.WAY

To the Board of Directors of

603 Legal Aid

Report on the'Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 603 Legal Aid (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022, and
the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements for the year then
ended.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of 603 Legal Aid as of December 31. 2022, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with accounting principles
genei^lly accepted In the United States of America.

The financial statements of 603 Legal Aid as of December 31, 2021 were audited by other
auditors whose report dated June 30,2022, expresses an unmodified opinion on these financial
statements.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the 603 Legal
Aid and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements related to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for bur audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 603 Legal
Aid's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlai Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that Includes.our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are'considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures Include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

t Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
signlincant accounting estihiates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, In our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered In the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 603 Legal Aid's ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.



Report on Summarized Comparative Information
The financial statements of 603 Legal Aid as of December 31, 2021 were audited by other
auditors whose report dated June 30, 2022, expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative Information presented herein as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2021, Is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The additional schedules on pages 19 and 20 are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Additionally, the accompanying
sch^ule of expenditures of f^eral awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Fedeml
Regulations (CFR) Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles end Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards. Is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including' comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additional prbc^ures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July
27, 2023, on our consideration of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 603 Legal Aid's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Dover, New Hampshire
July 27, 2023
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash end cash equivalents
Contribution receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

S

2022

382,001
12,057

408.942
23,901

$

mi

440,541

302,949
17,700

Total current assets 826,901 761.190

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET 6.326 8.481

OTHER ASSETS

Right of use asset
Security deposits

186.861
8,833

275,566
9,233

Total other assets '195.694 284,801

Total assets 1_ 1 028 923 s„ 1.054.472

■ LIABIUITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liability, current portion
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advances from grantors

$ 98,323

11,526

69,041
75,000

$ 88,602

37,504

1,633
6.000

Total current liabilities 251,890 133,739

LONG TERM UABILITIES

Lease liablGty. net of current portion 90,664 166.986

total liabilities 342.554 320.705

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 341.371 356.181

Wth donor restrictions

Legal Services Corporation, Proper^
Non-Legal Services Corporation

6,925
338,073

8,481
367.105

Tola! with donor restrictions 344,998 375,586

Total net assets 686,369 733,767

Total liabilities and net assets 1 1 028 923 i 1.054 472

'  See Notes to Financial Statements
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603LEGA1.AID

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.2022 AND 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATINQ ACTTVITIES
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile changes In net assets to net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Interest payments on financing lease
PPP loan forgiveness
(Increase) decrease In current assets:

Contrtbutlon receivable

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses
Security deposits

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advances from grantors

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTTVmES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

In-kind donations received

I n*kind Expenses

PPP loan forgiveness

2022 2021

s (47,398) S 171.764

2.153 1,028
126

- (156,683)

(12.057) .

(105,993) (219,264)
(6.201) (11.758)

40O (1.833)

(25,978) (14,204)
67,408 (8,885)
69,000 (54.633)

(58.540) (297.448)

. (8,254)

(8.254)

(58,540) (305.702)

440.541 746.243

L- 440 541

s 338041 L- 112.060

(338 0411 (112 0601

. L-

See Notes to Financlel Statements
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B03 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

N0TE1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

603 Legal Aid, formally Legal Advice and Referral Center, (the Organization) was
organized as a nonprofit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Organization is a non-profit corporation organized for the
purpose of providing civil legal assistance to persons financially unable to afford
legal assistance in the State of New Hampshire.

The accounting policies of the Organization conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit
organizations and the Accounting Guide for LSC Recipients, except as Indicated
hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Merger

During May 2021, a merger agreement was executed between New Hampshire Pro
Bono. Referral System, a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation, and Legal Advice
and Referral Center, the sun/lving nonprofit corporation. Consideration paid and
received as a result of this merger was comniensurate with the cash settlement
value of'outstanding receivables and payables of the New Hampshire Pro Bono
Referral System as of the date of the merger, approximately $23,331 and $9,307
respectively. As a result, no gain or loss on the merger, or goodwill or other
Intangible asset, was recognized. Concurrent to the merger the name of the merged
corpbratioh was amended to "603 Legal Aid".

Basle of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Basle of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follovra the recommendations of the Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) for financial statements of not-for-profit organizations.
Under the ASC, the Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Includes net assets that are not subject
to donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of management and the Board of Directors.



NOTES TO RNANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

Net assets with donor festrictiona: Includes net assets subject to donor or
certain griantor imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are,
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or
other events speclfed by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates those resources be maintained
in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, svhen the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been futfided. or both.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When these restrictions expire, net assets are feclassified
from net assets v^h donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions
in the statement of activities.

-As of December 31, 2022 and 2021 the Organization had net assets with donor
restrictions of $344,998 and $375,586, respectively (See Note 6).

Revenue Recognition

Jhe Organizafon recognizes grant and contract revenues from Legal Services
Corporation (LSC) as conditions related to such funds are met. Funds remaining at
year end for which conditions have not yet been met are reported as an advance
from grantor liability. The advance of LSC assets are subject to the provisions of
LSC's Fund Balance Regulatbn. LSC may, at its discretion, request reimbursement
for experises, the return of funds, or both as a result of noncompliance by the
Organization with the terms of the grant or contract. If the Organization terminates
its legal assistance activities, all unexpended funds are to be returned to the funding
sources. Furthermore, when LSC funds are used to acquire capital assets, the
donor restriction expires as depreciation expense is recognized on those assets,
with the undepreciated balance reported as net assets with donor restrictions.

The Organization also has revenue derived from cost-reimbursable federal and
state con^cts and grants, which ere conditional upon certain performance
requirennents and/or incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received
are recognized as donor restricted revenue. Amounts are reclassified to support
without dorior restrictions as expenditures are incurred in compliance with the
specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts not yet received but already awarded
are recorded as grants and contracts receivable.

10



6Q3 LgGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

Contrlbutlona

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the
Organization that is, in substance, unconditional. Donor restricted contributions are
reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature
of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Unconditional pledges and grants are recorded as made. These amounts are
recorded at the present value of the estimated fair value. Conditional pledges and
grants are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are
substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. Alt contributions and
grants receivable are considered current and expected to be received within one
year.

Contributed Goods and Services

Donated facilities, supplies, equipment, and staff support are recorded as "In-kind"
contributions if the services (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require
specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise be
purchased by the Organization. Donated services recognized as revenues and
expenses in the staternent of activities for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021 totaled $338,041, and $112,060, respectively.

Uae of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and .cash equivalents, grants receivable, accounts payable and other liabilities
are carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to
the inherently short-term nature of the transactions. The fair values determined for
financial instruments are estimates, which for certain accounts may differ significantly
from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents is
compris^ of cash, including cash on hand, and other highly liquid investments with
an original matufity of 90 days or less.

11



603 LgGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. i2022 AND 2021

Property and Egulpment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for purchased items and at fair value
for donated items and are summarized as follows at December 31:

2022 2021

Furniture $  8,254 $ 5,102
Equipment 66.771 75.024

75,025^ 80,126

Less accumulated depreciation 68.697 71.645

Furniture and equipment, net S 6.328 % 6.481

Depreciation Is computed using the straight-line method over estimated, three to ten-
year lives. The Organization's capitalization policy is to capitalize assets with a useful
life greater than 1 year and a cost greater than $5,000. Repair and maintenance costs
are expensed when incurred.

All property and equipment acquired by the Organization was purchased using LSC
funds. The Organization owns those assets; however, LSC has a reversionary
interest in those assets purchased with Its funds.

Depreciation expense was $2,153 and $1,028 for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

Accrued Vacation

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Organization implemented a new
policy that allows employees to retain earned time off for the future. The
Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $24,605 at December
31, 2022. For the year ended December 31, 2021, no such policy existed and
employees could not carry forward earned compensated leave time.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses
presehts the natural dasslfication detail of expenses by function.

12



M3LEgALAIP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to
more than one program' or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited, based
primarify on percerttage allocations calculated based on hours worked (time and
effort). The expenses that are allocated include payroll taxes, eniployee benefits,
space and occupancy, office supplies and expenses, communications, library
maintenance, and insurance, which are all allocated on the basis of time end effort, as
noted prevbusty.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire
income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for Federal or State income
taxes. In addition, the Organization has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Sen/ice not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the
Code. The Organization is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt
from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. FASB Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the Organization to report
uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Organization had no
uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2022 and, accordingly does not have
any unrecognized tax benefits that need to be recognized or disclosed in the
financial statements.

New Accountlna Pronouncement

In September'2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2020-07, Not-for-Profil Entities (Topic 956); Presentation and Discfosures by Not-
for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve
transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as gifts-
in-kind. for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial assets
include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment; the use of fixed assets
or utilities; material and supplies, such as food or clothing; intangible assets; and
recognized contributed services. The ASU requires a not-for-profit organization to
present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the statement of
activKies, apart from contributions of cash or other financial assets. It also requires
certain disclosures for each category of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized.
The amendments in this ASU should be applied on a retrospective basis and are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The
Organization adopted the provisions of ASU 2020-07 during the year ended
December 31, 2022.

13



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE Y^RS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets
and tease liabilities on the statement of financial position and disclosing key
information about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The standard
applies a fight of use model that requires, all leases with a lease term of more than
12 months, to recognize an asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be recorded. The

adoption of ASU 2016-02 resulted in the recognition of an operating right of use
assets of $275,568 and operating lease liabilities of $275,568 as of December 31,
2021 and right of use assets of $186,861 and operating lease liabilities of $186,987
at December 31, 2022. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did not have a material
impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash flows.

Summartzed Comparative Totala

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the
year'ended December 31, 2021, frorri which the summarized information was
derived.

N0TE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The Organization regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet Its
operating needs and other contractual commitments. Cash reserves In excess of daily
operational needs are invested in insured cash sweep accounts in order to maximize
investnierit return, while maintaining safety and liquidity. Excess LSC funds are
maintained in FDIC insured checking or money market accounts.

The following table reflects the Organization's financial assets as of December 31,
2022 and 2021, reduced by amounts that are not available to meet general
expenditures within one year of the statement of financlal position date because of
donor and other restrictions or internal board designations.

Financial assi^ available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other
restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the
"following:

14



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Total financial assets as of year end

Less amounts not available to be used within
one year

Net assets with donor restrictions

Less LSC restricted net assets

Total financial not available within one year

Financial assets available to hrieet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

382.001
12.057

408.942

803.000

344.998
(6.925)

2021

$  440,541

302.949

743.490

375.586
18.481)

338.073 367.105

^ ^9^7 % 376.385

In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Organization also could draw
upon $50,000 of its available line of credit, as further discussed In Note 8.

NOTE 3. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Organization maintains its cash balances with a financial institution. The balances
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a combined total of
$250,000 per financial institution. The bank balances may, at times, materially exceed
federally insured limits. Per, the compliance requirements set forth by the Legal
Services Corporation, all funds held by 603 Legal Aid above the Federal Deposit
Insurarice Corporation limit were held in a financial instrument account wHhin the
federal institution.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, approximately 51% and
54%, respectively, of total support and revenue was derived from the LSC Basic Field
Grant. The future existence of the Organization is dependent upon the continued
support from LSC.
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6Q3L£QALAID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 4. GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivable, by funding category, consist of the following at December 31:

2022 2021

New Hampshire Bar Foundation • lOLTA $ 105,000 $ 120,687

IRS LiTC 45,613 26,664

Carhpaigh for Legal Services 57,980 31,984

NHLA-Cail Center 77,144 31,521

NH bOJ VOCA-ARPA 64,288" -

Miscellaneous grants 22,598 24.401

VOCA 4,501 40,168

LSC TIG Grant 22,409 15:839

VAWA 9.409 11.705

Total grants receivable L. 408.942 i  . 302.949

NOTE 6. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives' grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Organiz^n is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the
Organization might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for
this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or
assessed as of December 31,2022.

NOTE 6. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions represent cpntributions for civil legal services as
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, whose use has been limited by the donors as to
purpose and future time periods and are as follows:

2022

LSC Basic Field Grant • Property
Website and Technology Improvements
Housing Assistance
Victim of Crime Act Grant

New Hampshire Law Library Grant
BOA Foreclosure Grant

6,925 $
31.399
40,000

73,077
193.597 _

2021

8.481

37,350
39,945

167

78.433
211.210.

Total net assets with donor restrictions S 344.998 t 375.586
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 7. LEASE COMMITMENTS

In April 2014 the Organization entered into a rental lease agreement for office space
and par1<ihg at a monthly rate of $4,200, which extended through October 31, 2021.
Effective November 1, 2021, the Organization relocated, entering into a new rental
lease agreement which extends through October 2024, at a monthly rate of $8,833.

In February 2021 the Organization entered into a rental lease agreement for a
copier at a quarterly rate of $540, which extends through October 16, 2026.

The Organization accounts for its operating leases under FASB ASC 842. As such,
a right of use ("ROU") asset and corresponding lease liability are recorded in the
statement of financial position. ROU assets represent the Foundation's right to use
an underlying asset for the lease term and the lease liabilities represent their
obligation to make the lease payments arising from the lease.

Operating lease ROU assets and liabBlties are recognized at commencement date
based on the present value of lease payments over the tease term. The discount
rate related to the Organization's lease liability as of December 31, 2022 ranged
from 3.00% to 8.50% which is based upon the stated discount rate of one lease and
the incremental borrowing rate based on the existing line of credit. At Oecemt>er 31,
2022, the right of use asset and lease liability were $186,861 and $166,987,
respectively.

Rent expense for the years ended Oecemtter 31, 2022 and 2021 were $97,163 and
$59,666, respectively.

The following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum payments for the operating
lease:

Years ending
December 31 Amount

2023 $ 108,156
2024 90,490
2025 2,160
2026

Total undiscounted lease liability 202,426

Less imputed interest f15.4391

Total lease liability $  186.987
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603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTES. UNE OF CREDIT

The Organization' has a revolving unsecured line of credit with a financial institution
for $50,000. with a variable interest rate at December 31, 2022 and 2021 of 8.50%
and 6.00%, respectively. No amounts have been drawn on the line of credit and
there was no outstanding balance due as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 9. UNEXPENDED LSC AWARDS

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization fully expended
each of its LSC awaids, with no unexpended LSC awards reported as advances
from grantor.

NOTE 10. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

During April 2020, the Organization obtained a note payable under the Paycheck
Protection Prograrn (PPP) in the amount of $156,683. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Organization applied for and received principal forgiveness
in whole by the Small Business Administration under the CARES Act. For the year
ended December 31, 2021, PPP loan forgiveness of $156,683 has been reported
on the statement of activities as revenues and other support without donor
restrictions.

NOTE 11. PENSION PLAN

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution pension plan in accordance with
Intemal Revenue Code section 401(a) for all employees who have attained the age
of twenty-one. Contributions are based on a percentage of the employee's annual
-compensation; 5% for 2022 and 2021. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021 pension expense was $75,983 and $49,752, respectively.

NOTE 12. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's financial statements to
conform to the current.year presentation. These classifications had no effect on the
previously reported charige in net assets, or net asset amounts.

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organizatiort has evaluated subsequent events through July 27, 2023 the date
the financial statements were available to be issued.
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603 LEGAL AiD

SCHEDULE OF SUB^ECIPIENT AWARD AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2021

Fiscal Year

2021 Grant

REVENUES:

2021 Sub-recipient award 26,210
2020 Budget remaining to be spent 20.666

Total Revenues 46,866

EXPENSES:

Personnel salaries 34,731
Fringe benefits 9,452
Payroll taxes 2.6B3

Total Expenses 46.666

BUDGET REMAINING TO BE SPENT •

During the first five months of 2021. en LSC subaward from LARC to Pro Bono Association was in
effect When the merger happened, Pro Bono Association became inactive and all of its staff were
hired by 603 Legal Aid. As such, the work that was being performed under a subcontract transltloned
to work being done by 603 Legal Aid employees effective 6/1/2021.

For the year ended December 31,2022 the Organization had no LSC grant subawards.
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603 LEQALAID

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of 603 Legal Aid under programs of the federal
governrnent for the year ended Decemt>er 31, 2022. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 603
Legal Aid, it is not intended to arid does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets,'or cash flows of 603 Legal Aid.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Su<^ expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Unifomn Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are lirhited as to relmbumement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

603 Legal Aid has elected not to use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 SUBRECIPIENTS

'603 Legal Aid had no subredpients for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVeRNMBNT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

603 Legal Aid

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of 603 Legal Aid (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 27, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 603 Legal
Aid's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's Internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combihatlbn of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material hnisstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detetied and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or signlficani deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these
limitations, -during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control,
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-001
that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether 603 Legal Aid's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct arid material effect on the financial statements. .However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of This Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
perforrned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
July 27, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
603 Legal'Aid

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We have audited 603 Legal Aid's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
Identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement and in the Legal Services
Corporation Compliance Supplement for Audits of LSC Recipients, that could have a direct
and material effect on each of 603 Legal Aid's major federal programs for the year ended
December 31. 2022. 603 Legal AkJ's major f^eral programs are identified In the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, 603 Legal Aid complied, In all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and nwiterial effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained In Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and' the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal .Regulations Part 200.
Uniform Admiriistrative Requirerhents, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of 603 Legal Aid and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities. In accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does' riot
provide a legal determination of 603 Legal Aid's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of taws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to 603 Legal Aid's federal programs.

Auditors* Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirernents referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on 803 Legal Aid's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted In' accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Unifomi Guidance will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher
than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of
the report on compliance about 603 Legal Aid's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Govemment
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding 603 Legal Aid's compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but hot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weakhes^s in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are
required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-002 and 2022-003.
Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on 603
Legal Aid's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our compliance audit
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 603 Legal Aid's
response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on tntemal Control over Compliance
A deficiency in intemaf control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of 'compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over ̂ mpliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signiricant deficiency In internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance vrith a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover. New Hampshire
July 27. 2023
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603 LEGAL AID

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022

1.. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of 603
' Legal Aid.

2., One significant deficiency is disclosed during the audit of the financial statements is
reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Intemel Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3;, No instances of nohcompllance material to the financial statements of 603 Legal Aid,
which would be required to be reported in accordance with Govemment Auditing
Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies In internal control over major federal
award programs are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance ̂for
Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for 603 Legal
Aid expresses an unrrtodified opinion on all major programs.

6. 'Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516(a) are reported in this schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included;

Legal Services Corporation, Basic Field Grant - ALN 09.130010
Legal Services Corporation, Technology Improvement Grant (19043)

-ALN 09.130010

Legal Services Corporation, Technology Improvement Grant (GT-TG21T-00007)
-ALN 09.130010

8. The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. 603 Legal Aid was determined not to be a low-risk auditee.
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B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

2022-001

Significant Deficiency

Condition; The Ex^utive Director (ED) receives an email from Checkmate when the
payroll is completed, (or finalized) that includes a link to the final payroll register and
other reports. It is at this point that the ED would log in to Checkmate and review the
final report against what was approved. There was no indication that this was ever
done. It was r>ot part of the documented procedures that were communicated by
Squaretail to in-house accounting during training, nor did the ED ever give any
indication that they performed this step.

Criteria or specific requirement: It is crucial for the Executive Director to review the
final payroll register and document this review to ensure not only that it is taking place,
but it is beiiig done timely.

Cause: The payroll processes changed several times during the year under audit.

Effect: Failure to review the final payroll report each pay period against the initially
approved submission documents increases the risk that the information submitted does
not align with the source documents, sudh as timesheets.

Questioned costs: No questioned costs were identified.

Recommendation: \r) order to provide greater control over payroll, we suggest that
management review the final Checkmate payroll report for each payroll period prior to
the pay date. We also suggest that documentation of the review of these reports be
made on the reports and be maintained.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS-MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

Finding 2022-002: Compliance finding - Eligibility
Legal Services Corporation
Basic Field Grant (ALN# 09.130010)
Technology Improvement Grant (19043) (ALN# 09.130010)
Technology Improvement Grant (GT-TG21T-00007) (ALN# 09.130010)

Condition: Cases were accepted with over income and/or over assets with no waivers
or offsetting expenses present; Client Agreement and Referral Form (CARF) was sent
to client and never returned, yet case was placed wHh Pro Bono attorney; Client was
over income but had unreimbursed medical expenses and due to the listed expenses
hot being captured in the adjustments,'the case was considered not income eligible, but
should nave been eligible; Applicant withdrew from process before records were
provided, leading to no services being provided regardless.

Criteria or epeclfic requirement Client reported income levels must be within the
■maximum Income levels or offset appropriately with listed expenses. Assets must not
exceed applicable ceilings. Retainer agreements must be obtained, if necessary, based
oh level and type of services provided.

29



Cause; Lack of oversight by management.

Effect: Copy of needed waivers, expense listing, and / or CARF was not present in the
client files.

Questioned costs; No questioned costs were identified.

Recommendation: A procedure be implemented to ensure that the Organization
remains in compliance and does an internal review to ensure all required documentation
is in the client files.

Finding 2022-003: Compliance finding - Reporting
Legal Services Corporation
Basic Field Grant <ALN# 09.130010)
Technology Improvement Grant (19043) (ALN# 09.130010)
Technology Improvement Grant (GT-TG21T-00007) (ALN# 09.130010)

Condition: The Report on Emergency Non-Priority Cases submitted late by 9 days, the
Annual Report on Review of Priorities was drafted and approved by Board, but not
submitted to LSC, and the Special Grant Conditions #3 progress report was due on or
before 8/1/2022 and was submitted nearly 2 months late on 9/26/2023.

Criteria or specific requirement: Legal Services Corporation requires multiple reports
be submitted both annually and semiannually by the Organization.

Cause: Lack of oversight by management.

Effect; Several reports due during the year under audit were submitted late, while
another report was drafted and never submitted to Legal Services Corporation.

Questioned costs: No questioned costs were identified.
r

Recommendation: A procedure be implemented to ensure that the Organization
remains in compliance and does an internal review to ensure all required reports are
completed in a tmely manner.
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2022-001

Planned Corrective Action: Wd agree with.theneed for a manaoemenl conrirmation that the final payroll
report reconciles to what was approved during the Initial payroll process when hours are submitted to
Checkmate and a preliminary payroi) 'prep' register Is generated. We have added this step Into our Payroll
Procedures Checklist. The bxecutlve or Deputy Director wit) access and review the final Checkmate
rralster once notification Is received that the payroll Is finalized. The notification of review by management
wdi be sent to accounting who will maintain in the relevant pay perM folder.

Responsible Person; Donna Dudley
Date of Completion: Implemented In August. 2023

2022-002

Planned Corrsctlve Action: Every year the Organization complies with an in-depth compliance review for
LSC In which at leastTS cases that were dosecfin the previous grant year are randomly selected using an
LSC designated randomization process. Those cases are then Iridlvidually reviewed for 13 LSC designated
errors. In a process called Self Inspection. The resulting Information is collected and reported to LSC as
part of Ongoing Compliance Oversight. Finally, the Organization must submit a Self-Inspection Certification
and Summary Form which lists the number of cases where errors were identified. This process eiiows the
organization to identify .trends and make adjustments to protocols and training on an annual basis.

The Orgahlzatjcn has put in place all necessary protocols to ensure compliance with LSC regulations
regarding assessing and documenting client eligibility. Ongoing training and oversight will be provided to
intake staff and caseworkers throughout the year to ensure compliance.

Responsible Person: Emma Sletl
Date of Completion: December 31,2023

2022-003

Planned Corrective Action: Management has just recently begun the creation of both individual grant
calerSdars as well as a shared master grants calendar. These ere Outlook based and shared with pr^ect
staff responsible for subrnttlng the various reports. A new protocol is being developed which requires the
responsible employee for each reporting decline to add those dates to meir personal caterKlars and to
either update the shared Outlook celendar with submission dates or notIN the organizational Grants
Manager (currently the staff accountant) when each rep^ is submitted, the Grants Manager will be
responsible for oversite of grant reporting deadlines.

Responsible Peracn: Angellque Leis
Date of Comptetlon: July 27,2023

Sincerely,

Steven B. Scudder

Interim Executive Director

93 N. State Street. Suite 200, Concord. NH 0330/

Phone: 603-224.3333 \ Fax: 603-224-6067
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603 LEGAL AID

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022

Finding #2021-001 - Property and Inventory

Condition: A reconciliation between the physical inventory and the accounting records Is
not performed. Additionally, through examination of the inventory records it was noted that
certain required information fields were not completed for each iterri listed.

Recommendation: It is recommended that the inventory system be evaluated to
incorporate a reconciliation process between the results of the physical inventory and the
information contained withiri the accounting system. Additionally, we recommend that
imanageiTient review the Legal Services Corporation property management manual to
ensure that all required data fields are completed during the inventory process.

Current Statue: Corrective action has been taken to address this item satisfactorily.

Finding #2021-002 • Program Income

Condition: 603 Legal Aid receives support from an outside organization toward their call
center activities. The call center activities are also supported by LSC funds. While total
expenses incurred exceeded the amount of additional support and LSC funding received,
indicating that 100% of funding was expended, a proportionate share of the Income was not
allocated and reported as part of the LSC program.

Recommendation: It is recommended that Income received be evaluated to determine if it
is generated as a result of activities supported in whole or in part by LSC funds (program
income) to determine if the income is derived from activities already supported through LSC
resources. In the event that income is determined to be program income, it is
recommended that a share of the income be allocated to the LSC program In proportion to
the support provided through the use of LSC funds in generating the income.

Current Statue: Corrective action has been taken to address this item satisfactorily.
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DOVE Project Coordinator Job Description

Summary: The DOVE Project Coordinator is responsible for the implementation and
coordination of the DOVE Project and Pro Bono Program domestic violence and stalking
initiatives. The Coordinator supervises and mentors the Assistant Coordinator, working in
tandem to support program initiatives that serve low-income victims of domestic violence and
stalking.

Dutin and Responsibilities:

Supervision:

-Supervise and facilitate ongoing professional development of the Assistant DOVE Project
Coordinator, DV project interns, Daniel Webster Scholars

DOVE Project Implementation and Support:

-Provide technical assistance to volunteer lawyers, crisis center agencies, court staff, law
enforcement agencies, and other social service and partner legal service agencies

-Develop and establish case priorities for volunteer attomeys and ensure compliance with project
values and grant requirements

•Respond to inquiries related to the DOVE Project and additional 603 Legal Aid initiatives as
needed

-Field complaints from clients, volunteer lawyers, and additional partner organizations and
elevate to Director as needed

-Collaborate with legal service organizations and community partners to increase victims' access
to justice

Volunteer Attorney Recruitment and Support:

-Recruit volunteer attomeys to the DOVE Project and support them through onboarding process,
including training and mentorship opportunities

-Maintain professional relationships with current DOVE volunteer attomeys and provide
technical assistance support as needed

-Develop and implement educational seminars for attomeys regarding the DOVE Project, as well
as seminars on domestic violence and stalking.

-Work with the NH Bar Association and other CLE providers to offer DOVE Project training to
current and potential volunteer attomeys

Project Coordination with Crisis Center Aeencies:

•Develop and coordinate crisis center educational seminars to enhance partnerships with
volunteer lawyers



-Provide technical assistance to crisis service advocates for referrals to volunteers

•Complete case management work as needed

Partnership with UNH Franklin Pierce School of Law:

•Maintain partnership with UNH Franklin Pierce School of Law's Daniel Webster Scholar
Program and provide education to DWS regarding the DOVE Project, as well as education on
domestic violence and stalking

-Collaborate with the DWS Director to implement one or more law student referral marathons to
link Pro Bono clients with volunteer lawyers

-Attend Annual Job Fair and participate in outreach opportunities regarding Pro Bono

opportunities for law students and newly minted lawyers

•Develop other related collaborations with the law school as appropriate

Community Outreach and Education:

-Develop and provide overall coordination for orientation programs and ongoing trainings on
associated domestic violence and stalking laws, court rules, and best practices for working with
victims of domestic violence and stalking to volunteer lawyers, crisis centers, and other
community member organizations

•Attend and participate in council meetings with DV agency stakeholders and related
DV/Slalking conferences

•Cultivate relationships within the community, speak at various organizations, and educate
individuals on the DOVE Project and domestic violence and stalking

•Develop and disseminate DV and Stalking outreach brochures and other public awareness
materials via outreach events, direct mailings, NH Bar news, NH e-Bulletin, and other social
media platforms

Grant Manasement/Administrative

-Support 603LA Management in identifying and completing grant applications, including the
development and implementation of project goals and objectives ^

•Ensure timely and accurate grant data collection, reporting, and compliance with grant
requirements

-Identify opportunities to improve 603 Legal Aid's case management system related to the
advocate facilitated online application process; develop training materials for our partners to
master the application process
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603 Legal Aid • Job Announcement

Job Title: DOVE Project Assistant Coordinator

Department: 603 Legal Aid Pro Bono Program

Reports to: DOVE Project Coordinator/Deputy Director

DOVE Project Assistant Coordinator Job Description

Summary: The DOVE Project Assistant Coordinator is responsible for working with and supporting the
DOVE Project Coordinator In the overall implementation of the DOVE Project. The Assistant Coordinator
provides comprehensive case management and technical support to low-Income victims of domestic
violence and stalking who are seeking a protective order. The Assistant Coordinator also works closely
with crisis center agencies across the State of New Hampshire to Increase victims' access to justice.

Duties and Responsibilities:

DOVE Project Implementation ond Coordination:

•  Support the DOVE Project Coordinator In Implementing the DOVE Project In a manner that aligns

with program values and grant requirements

•  Advocate on behalf of survivors with crisis service advocates, legal systems, and other agencies

depending on each victim's needs

•  Provide technol assistance to volunteer lawyers, crisis center agencies, court staff, law

enforcement agencies, and other social service and partner legal service agencies

•  Collaborate with legal service organizations and community partners to increase victims' access

to justice

Cose Monoaement:

•  Ovenee DOVE cases from beginning to end; screen for eligibility, process Intakes, collaborate

with crisis center advocates In placing cases with volunteer attorneys, and gather final

disposition Information to close cases In a timely manner.

•  Maintain and update accurate files and records, including service delivery, advocacy plans, and

other documentation in accordance with confidentiality and grant guidelines

•  Assist with case review assessment as needed for Pro Bono volunteers

•  Raise concerns with cases to DOVE Project Coordinator as needed

Project Coordination with Crisis Center Agencies:

•  Establish and maintain professional relationships with crisis center advocates across the State of
New Hampshire



•  Provide technical assistance to crisis service advocates regarding the DOVE Project, as well

working with attorneys and laws pertaining to domestic violence and stalking

•  Respond to inquiries from crisis center advocates related to the DOVE Project

•  Assist DOVE Project Coordinator in developing and facilitating crisis center educatlonai seminars

to enhance partnerships with volunteer lawyers

Outreach and Education:

•  Recruit law students to volunteer with the DOVE Project

•  Assist DOVE Project Coordinator in developing and facilitating community education

presentations/seminars about domestic violence and other community service partner

organizations

•  Attend outreach events, networking opportunities, and seminars as needed to promote the

DOVE Project and to recruit volunteer attorneys

•  Assist DOVE Project Coordinator In developing and disseminating DV and Stalking outreach

brochures and other public awareness materials via outreach events, direct mailings, NH Bar

news. NH e-bulletln, and other social media platforms

Grant Manaaement/Admmistrohve:

•  Ensure timely and accurate data collection pertaining to DOVE cases, and assist DOVE Project

Coordinator in collecting data for accurate grant reporting

Minimum Job Requirements:

•  An Associate degree in human service-related field, sociology, psychology, counseling, social

work, paralegal or related field; and 2-4 years of experience working with survivors of

domestic violence and or sexual assault or any equivalent combination of training and

experience which provides required knowledge, skills and abilities specified;

•  Knowledge of NH Domestic Violence statutes and case law;

•  Technical proficiency with personal computers and standard office equipment; fluent with

Microsoft Office suite (Outlook, Word, Excel, and PowerPoint); develop proficiency with all

aspects of 603 Legal Aid's case management database (Legal Server), including data entry,

search inquiries and developing reports; and high comfort level using online tools; and

•  Excellent written and verbal communication presentation skills with a high degree of detail

orientation.

Knowledge, Skills and Abilities Required:

•  A demonstrated commitment to social, economic, and racial justice;

•  Sensitivity to the needs of people experiencing financial hardship, communication with people

employing a trauma-informed approach;

•  Knowledge and/or experience navigating legal systems, social services, and other community

resources;



Strong woHting knowledge of principles, best practices, and promising approaches for

domestic violence prevention and survivor-driven advocacy;

Ability to use modern office equipment and information technology including software

applications related to areas of responsibility and has the ability to quickly learn other

technology as necessary;

•  Cultural humility in working with low-income clients across the spectrum of diversity,

including race, ethnicity, gender identity, sexual orientation, socio-economic status, immigrant

status, religious Identity, physical and mental disabilities, and limited English proficiency;

•  Ability to work effectwely within deadlines, under stress, and with changing work priorities;

•  Ability to adapt rapidly In response to charging Information or funding needs;

•  Ability to work as a team and with minimum supervision. Possesses self-supervising attributes
and a positive, congenial attitude;

I  • Maintain confidential and sensitive information; and

•  Ability to occasionally travel as deemed necessary.

SALARY/BENEFITS;

This position is full-b'me (37.5 hours weekly) and considered hourly non-exempt for the purpose
of federal wage/hour law. Salary DOE, expected to range from $25.00 to $28.00 per hour, plus
benefits package including medical, retirement, life and disability and generous paid time off.
The DOVE Project Assistant Coordinator position is based in our Concord, NH office.

APPLICATION PROCESS:

To apply, send a cover letter and resume to careers@603iegalaid.org. Applications will be accepted until
the position is filled.

603.Legal Aid Is an Equal Opportunity Employer. We ore committed to building a diverse staff that
reflects the communities oflow^ncome and older (oge 60 plus) people that we work alongside, and
we value equity and inclusion In our workplace. 603 Legal Aid actively seeks applications from Black
people, Indigenous people, people of color, people of diverse notional origin, the LGBTQ community,
people with disabilities, older adults, veterans, people who have lived experience with poverty, and
other people belonging to communities that hove historically experienced injustice.
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TAYLOR FLAGG
Advocate [ Social Work Case Manager

PROFILE

EXPERIENCE

PERINATAl/SUO
SOCIAL WORK
CASE MANAGER

VICTIM/WITNESS
ADVOCATE

PROJECT
COORDINATOR/
RESEARCH
ASSISTANT

I am an advocate with a passion for social justice. I desire a position where I
can apply my passion for helping others and my experience working within
the criminal justice system and a social work setting. My goal is to find a
position where I can build upon my experience and continue to grow both
professionally and personally.

Amoskeag'Health (March 2022-Present)

• Provide comprehensive case management services to pregnant
and postpartum women, as well as mothers who struggle with
substance use disorders

• Advocate for patients with healthcare providers and community
partners to improve their lives and social situations

• Screen patients for health risk assessments, violence assessments,
mental illness, and substance use disorders

• Educate patients on pregnancy risks, risks of intimate partner
violence, and other health risks as needed.

Hillsborough County Attorney's Office (Nov 2019-March 2022)

• Advocate for adult and juvenile victims of felony-level crimes
through the court process from beginning to end

• Prepare victims and witnesses for court proceedings, including
trials

• Serve as liaison between victims, prosecutors, and police
departments

• Manage a caseload of i8o^ victims at any given time
• Ensure compliance with the NH Victims Bill of Rights
• Multi-disciplinary team member with Child Advocacy Center

Pfeverition Innovations Research Center

• Coordinate the implementation of uSafeUS mobile app. a grant-
funded project at 22 colleges and universities in NH

• Collaborate with crisis center staff, police departments, and
college administrators

• Oversee social media outreach and create social media content

relating touSafeUS
• Assisted on various grant-funded projects Co-authored

publication. 'Beyond the Gender Binary: Trans/forming IPV
Prevention Using a Public Health Framework* (New York University
Press. April 2019)'
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TAYLOR FLAGG
Advocate | Social Work Case Manager

SKILLS

EDUCATION

Advocacy I.Project Coordination and Management 1 Case Management I
Critical thinking and problem solving I Collaborative teamwork j Health
(Education 1 Care Plan | Safety Planning I Multitasking | Crisis Management I
Outreach j Evaluation | Research | Analytical Reading and Writing |

University of New Hampshire

• Master of Arts. Justice Studies: 2017
• Bachelor of Arts. History and Justice Studies: 2016

Other Education & Experience

• NH Attorney General's Office Victim Assistance Academy: 2021
• PHO, Sociology: Aug 2017-March 2018
• Certified Recovery Support Worker (in process)
• Maternal Mental Health Worker (in process)

REFERENCES Shaylen Roberts. Assistant County Attorney
Merrimack County Attorney's Office r

David Jenkins, Assistant County Attorney
Cheshire County Attorney's Office

Ashley Taylor. Victim/Witness Advocate
NH Attorney General's Office

Rebecca Ludecke, Project Manager
Mimecast

Nicole Clark, Case Manager
Amoskeag Health
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MARGARET FLORINO

Education

Southern New Hampshire University Anticipated Graduation: October 2023
Major: Political Science and Administration CPA: 3.90
with a focus in public relations and communications

^  Experience

BemazzanI Law, PLLC Nashua, NH
Head Criminal Defense & Litigation Paralegal April 2022 — Present
0 Assists senior attorneys with criminal and family matters, including felonies, misdemeanors,

criminal annulments, parenting, divorce, and ̂ ardianship
0 Worked closely with senior paralegals to lieam policies, procedures and preparation for trials

Drafts extensive, thorough motions for criminal and family cases, and file in both Circuit and
Superior Courts in New Hampshire
Drafts and executes subpoenas

D Communicates with expert wimesses, private investigators, and court reporters to acquire services
D Assist attorney during felony jury trials

Meticulously tracks billable hours; inputs billable hours in both Smokeball and Leanlaw programs
n Communicates with clients, opposing counsel and Court personnel in a professional and ethical

manner

0 Reviews and processes discovery in criminal matters and gather testimony from wimesses
D Organizes and analyzes financial disclosures for matters in the Family Division Circuit Courts
0 Maintains and organizes physical files
Q Works as a liaison with DOVE and 603 Legal Aid to coordinate representation for prompt hearings

New Hampshire Public Defender Nashua, NH
Legal Assistant June 2021 - April 2022
0 Assisted four to five senior and managing attorneys; drafted and filed motions in District, Family,

and Superior Courts in New Hampshire; received, logged, and organized Slate's discovery.
Q Corresponded with clients to ensure they felt well-connected with their attorneys, notified them of

hearings, answered questions, and made the legal process more transparent in order to promote
Client comfort and understanding.

0 Scheduled client rneetings and organized hearings and other private appointments on attorneys'

calendars.

D Utilized the Defenderdata software system to organize client information and Court Forms
D Communicated with forensic psychologists/mental health professionals, interpreters, and

transportation services to arrange appointments for clients
U Filed invoices for specialists' billing

^ Assisted in training new employees

Bernazzani Law Nashua, NH

Legal Assistant Intern June 2020 - August 2020
^ brafled and filed pleadings in the Family Division Circuit Courts ofNew Hampshire



Worked closely with paralegals and the managing attorneys in the areas of family, immigration,

estate, and real estate law

0 Filed the intake of new clients; scheduled meetings for attorneys; input billable hours; and

maintained the upkeep of physical files in the office

activities

Criminal Justice Club, Member August 2019 - March 2020
•  Participated in weekly meetings to further education in topics such as the mass incarceration

epidemic in America, current high-profile criminal proceedings, and systemic issues perceived in
the criminal justice system

Skills and Certifications

Certified Notary Public and Justice of the Peace in the State of New Hampshire, proficient with the
numerous legal information programs such as Smokeball and DefenderData, LeanLaw legal billing
software, the electronic filing system for the Superior, District, and Family Courts of New Hampshire,
Microsoft Office, and Microsoft Excel


